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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2021 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

The novel coronavirus pneumonia pandemic dealt a severe blow
to the fashion apparel retailing sector during the financial year
ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year”) of Moiselle International
Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”). In an attempt
to curb the spread of the disease, governments around the world
imposed restrictions on travels and ordered eateries, retail shops
and entertainment premises to suspend business or shorten the
opening hours. In Hong Kong, where Moiselle derived a
substantial portion of its revenue, the retail sector was seriously
affected as visitor arrivals in the city plunged by 93.6% in 2020,
according to Hong Kong Tourism Board quoting the data from
the Immigration Department of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”). As a result, the business of
retailers and restaurants was dominated by the local customers.
According to the Census and Statistics Department of the
HKSAR, the value of retail sales of wearing apparel at the retail
outlets in the city plunged by approximately 41.3% to about
HK$26.51 billion in 2020. In Macau, fashion apparel retailing
was in the same difficult situation due to the pandemic. In
Mainland China, where the pandemic was largely brought under
control except for a few sporadic outbreaks, retail of apparel,
shoes, headwear and knitted products was also affected, albeit
to a lesser extent, with a 6.6% decrease in value in 2020
(source: National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of
China).
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In the past several years, the fashion apparel industry has been
grappling with the fundamental changes in the market, including
the growing popularity of electronic commerce, the emergence
of the younger generation of consumers who have different
preferences for the style of fashion from those of other different
generations, and consumers’ increasing reliance on internet,
especially social media, for information about fashion apparel
and for shopping for it. To adapt to the changes, many industry
players have stepped up the development of their online
operations for marketing and sales. This trend was sped up by
social distancing which was adopted as an anti-pandemic
measure and caused many people to move their daily activities
online. Most importantly, the younger customers prefer on-trend
fashion apparel to the classic and elegant one. A fashion apparel
design and retailing firm which has long been positioned as a
brand for niches in the high-end and upper-middle markets has
to orient itself more towards the market for unique and on-trend

fashion in order to remain competitive.

RESULTS

Moiselle mainly engages in retailing women’s fashion apparel to
high-end and upper-middle markets but is also gearing more
towards the design and sale of on-trend apparel targeted at the
younger generation of customers. It recorded a loss of
HK$23,205,000 for the Year. The loss narrowed by 84% mainly
because the impairment and depreciation of the equipment and
facilities at its retail shops and that of the right-of-use assets in
the form of the leases on the shop spaces during the Year were
much less than those made for the previous financial year ended
31 March 2020 (the “Previous Financial Year”). Moreover, the
Group’s investment properties appreciated in value in a
revaluation based on a prospect of improvement of the operating
environment which was believed to have already bottomed out.
The narrowing of the loss during the Year was also helped by
the Group’s continued rationalization of its retail network which
included the closure of underperforming stores and opening of
some others in locations with good prospect, its success in
negotiating for rent concessions or reductions for shop spaces,

the reduction in staff costs, the curtailing of marketing activities,

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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a rebound in business with the local customers in Hong Kong in
the second half of the Year as the pandemic showed signs of
abating, and some one-off financial assistance granted by the

Hong Kong government.

The loss for the Year was mainly due to the operating loss,
which also decreased by 76% because of the closure of
underperforming shops amid the rationalization of the Group’s
retail network and reductions in rents for some shop spaces. The
operating loss for the Year mainly resulted from the sharp fall in
revenue from sales at the Group’s retail stores amid the
pandemic, especially those in Hong Kong and Macau, where the
Group recorded about 43% and about 57% decreases in revenue
respectively. Overall, the Group recorded a 34% decrease in
turnover to HK$127,283,000 for the Year.

The Group’s businesses in Hong Kong accounted for 43% of its
turnover while those in Mainland China contributed to 32%.
Operations in Macau, Taiwan and Singapore together made up
25% of the Group’s revenue. Gross profit margin was 68.3% for
the Year, compared with the 76.7% for the Previous Financial

Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fundamental changes in the fashion apparel market had
already made the business environment very challenging in the
past several years. The outbreak of the pandemic in 2020
exacerbated the situation. To cope with the difficulties, the
Group made two significant moves during the Year —
repositioning its major house brand to project a youthful image
and stepping up the development of its electronic commerce

business.

The Group repositioned its major house brand MOISELLE as a
brand that accentuates the beauty of Asian women’s silhouette
through two fashion lines, namely the classic and elegant
fashion apparel on the one hand and the on-trend and unique
fashion apparel that projects a youthful image on the other hand

during the Year. The Group geared its products more towards

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #
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young customers who increasingly predominated the fashion
apparel market. For instance, it increased the portion of
mid-range, on-trend and unique fashion apparel from 30% to
50% of the total number of stock keeping units (“SKU”) for its
spring/summer collection in 2021. The theme of marketing the
Group's seasonal collection is about manifesting the wearers’
personalities and self-awakening and it is summed up in a

slogan “C’est MOI, MOISELLE” (“EF2F " in Chinese).

To adapt itself to the growing trend towards electronic
commerce, the Group opened its own online platform for the
marketing and sales of its products on its own website for its
Hong Kong operations at the end of July 2020. The move
marked the beginning of the Group’s effort to build its own
electronic commerce business outside Mainland China, where it
had already formed alliances with three local online shopping
website operators several years ago to capitalize on the growing
popularity of electronic commerce in the country. It also
leveraged the social media to promote its products. Such online
sales and marketing initiatives are more cost-effective and fit

well in the growing trend towards online shopping.

As to the business of running physical stores, the Group kept
rationalizing its retail network, negotiated for rent concessions
or reductions for shop spaces, and had enhanced the shopping
experience at its stores by incorporating such elements as
environmental awareness, quality lifestyle and art into the

interior decoration.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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OUTLOOK

It is believed that the overall retail market in Hong Kong has
already bottomed out as the pandemic has shown signs of
abating. However, a recovery in the market is expected to be
slow in the financial year ending 31 March 2022. Therefore, the
Group will continue with its prudent approach to business
development so as to get through the very difficult operating

environment.

Apart from the ongoing rationalization of its network of stores
and its other retrenchment measures, the Group will step up its
efforts to develop its cost-effective online platform for sales and
marketing. For instance, it will develop more on-trend fashion
apparel which will only be available on the Group’s online
shop. Such move not only enables the Group to save on cost but
also serves as a more effective means to market its products to
the younger generation of customers. In addition, the Group also
plans to launch a mobile phone-enabled application to allow its
frontline staff to market its products to its potential customers in
various markets. With such mobile phone-enabled application,
the customers will be able to earn reward points for the money
they spent on their purchases while the Group will be able to
carry out precision marketing based on the customers’ individual

preferences and consumption patterns.

Most importantly, the Group will continue with its effort to
reposition its major house brand MOISELLE so as to cope with
the fundamental change in the fashion apparel market which is
increasingly predominated by the younger customers who prefer
on-trend and unique fashion apparel. The Group will step up the
effort to design and produce more trendy and mid-range wear

that projects a youthful image.

All these measures are aimed at enhancing the Group’s
competitive strength and adaptability to the changes in the
market. The Group will monitor closely the economic conditions
and fashion trends in the markets and may adjust the above

plans accordingly.

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Targeting the markets for luxurious and mid-range apparel, the
Group operates such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s.,
GERMAIN and Rosamund MOISELLE, while engaging in
distributorship for international brand LANCASTER. Each of the
brands has its own distinctive consumer base and is being
developed separately by the Group’s dedicated and talented
designer teams. The Group retails its products under the various
brands at stores in prime locations. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had 47 stores and counters in Hong Kong, first- and
second-tier cities of Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and
Singapore, up from 44 as at 31 March 2020. It closed some
underperforming stores but also opened some stores in places

with good prospect to rationalize its network of stores.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

The city’s retail sector was particularly hard hit by the Hong
Kong government’s anti-pandemic measures such as restrictions
on travels and the shortening of business hours at retail shops.
According to the Census and Statistics Department of the
HKSAR, the value of retail sales of wearing apparel at the retail
outlets in the city plunged by approximately 41.3% to about
HK$26.51 billion in 2020. Nevertheless, the business improved
in the first quarter of 2021 when the pandemic showed signs of
abating. The value of retail sales of wearing apparel at the retail
outlets in the city rebounded by about 26.1% year on year
during the first quarter of 2021 as the locals were more willing
to go shopping at physical stores after the pandemic had been

brought under control.

For the Year, revenue from the Group's operations in Hong Kong
plunged by about 43% to HK$55,305,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To get through the difficult time, the Group continued to
rationalize its retail network. It negotiated for rent concessions
and reductions for some of its shop spaces and succeeded in
getting them. It also applied for and was given one-off financial
assistance from the government that was aimed at tiding the
businesses over the unprecedented difficulties caused by the

pandemic.

The Group also stepped up the development of its electronic
commerce business as a cost-effective means to market and sell
its products and as a way to capitalize on the growing popularity
of online shopping. For instance, it opened its own online shop
on its own website for its Hong Kong operations. This marks a
significant move by the Group to expand its electronic

commerce business beyond Mainland China.

Most importantly, the Group repositioned its major house brand
MOISELLE as a brand with a youthful image that is geared more
towards the market for on-trend and unique fashion. This can
help the Group cope with such a fundamental change in the
fashion apparel market as the increasing proportion of the

younger generation in the customer base.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated 6 MOISELLE,
2 m.d.m.s., 3 LANCASTER and 2 M CONZEPT retail stores as
well as 1 outlet (As at 31 March 2020, the Group operated
7 MOISELLE, 2 m.d.m.s., T LANCASTER and 1 M CONZEPT retail

stores as well as 4 outlets).

Operations in Mainland China

Mainland China was the only market where the Group recorded
growth in sales. Revenue from the Group’s operations there
increased by 14% to HK$40,616,000 for the Year. The better
performance there could be attributed to the country’s success in

largely bringing the pandemic under control.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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The Group kept rationalizing its network of stores in the country
by closing down the underperforming ones and opening some
new ones in places with good prospect. It opened one MOISELLE
flagship store in a shopping mall called Grand Gateway 66 at
the base of an office complex Grand Gateway Shanghai in
Xujiahui District, Shanghai in December 2020 and a handbag
and accessories store LANCASTER in an affluent shopping,
dining and entertainment district Xintiandi, Shanghai in
November 2020. It had also earlier reopened one MOISELLE
shop at a new shop space in a shopping mall in Beijing in July
2020. It also continued with the effort to reduce the cost of
renting shop spaces. Under the Group’s lease agreements with
some landlords at some of its stores, the rents were charged as
certain percentages of the revenue from sales. This made it
easier for the Group to sustain the retail business at the

brick-and-mortar stores.

Meanwhile, the Group’s online sales operations also performed
well. It recorded growth in sales revenue at WeChat Mall on a
popular social media WeChat, electronic commerce website
VIP.com, which specializes in online discount sales and is
operated by Vipshop (“MfE” in Chinese), and Tmall, another
popular online shopping website. It also used some social media

and live streaming to conduct sales and marketing campaigns.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated 14 MOISELLE,
2 M CONZEPT and 1 LANCASTER retail stores in the country (As
at 31 March 2020, the Group operated 13 MOISELLE retail stores

in the country).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operations in Macau

For the Year, the Group closed down two shops, namely one
MOISELLE shop and one M CONCEPT shop in Macau as it was
extremely difficult to sustain the business there amid the
pandemic that sent its sales plunging by 57% to approximately
HK$14,720,000. As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated three
shops at the Venetian Macao Resort Hotel and one shop at the
Parisian Macao Hotel, including 1 M CONZEPT, 1 MOISELLE, 1
m.d.m.s. and 1 LANCASTER retail stores in the city (As at 31
March 2020: 2 concept stores, M CONZEPT, 2 MOISELLE, 1
m.d.m.s. and 1 LANCASTER retail stores).

Operations in Taiwan

Revenue at the Group’s operations in Taiwan decreased by 4%
to approximately HK$14,174,000, which accounted for about
11% of the Group’s revenue for the Year. The decrease was due
to the closure of some underperforming stores. Overall, the
Group's operations there were supported by a staunch customer
base and had stable performance. The Group operated 5
MOISELLE and 3 LANCASTER retail stores as well as 2 outlets as
at 31 March 2021 in Taiwan (As at 31 March 2020: 4 MOISELLE

and 1T m.d.m.s. retail stores as well as 2 outlets).

Operations in Singapore

Revenue at the Group’s business in Singapore plummeted by
72% during the Year due to the pandemic. The Group operated
1 MOISELLE and 1 LANCASTER retail stores as at 31 March 2021
(As at 31 March 2020: 2 MOISELLE and 1 LANCASTER retail

stores).

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover decreased by approximately 34% to
approximately HK$127,283,000 (2020: HK$191,604,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2021 as compared with 2020. The
revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased by
approximately 43% to approximately HK$55,305,000 (2020:
HK$97,788,000). The worsening of business environment in
Hong Kong market caused significant decrease of revenue of the
segment under reduced traffic of customers at all points of sales.
The segment contributed to 43% (2020: 51%) of the Group’s

total revenue.

The revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong decreased by
approximately 23% to approximately HK$71,978,000 (2020:
HK$93,816,000) during the year ended 31 March 2021 under
the unprecedented public health crisis in relevant markets. The
segment contribution increased 8 percentage points to 57%
(2020: 49%) as benefited from increase in revenue in the market
of Mainland China.

During the year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 68.3%, as compared to 76.7% of the previous
year. Decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributed to
the increase in discounted sale and promotional activities during
the financial year. Operating expenses for the year ended 31
March 2021 totaled approximately HK$160,375,000, compared
to approximately HK$270,542,000 for 2020, decreased by
approximately 41%. Although the management had continued to
conduct various measures in stringent cost management to
counteract high operating expenses, mainly staff costs and rental
expenses, the Group suffered an operating loss of
HK$29,078,000 (2020: HK$119,134,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was approximately HK$22,751,000
(2020: HK$146,694,000), reduced significantly mainly due to
the improvement in the operating margin, the decreased
impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment, and the increase in fair value of investment

properties.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group financed its
operations with internally generated cash flows and bank
borrowings. The Group adopts a prudent financial policy such
that it can meet the financial obligations when they fall due and
maintain a sufficient operating fund for the development of the
Group’s business. At the end of the financial year, the Group's
aggregate bank deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$18 million (2020: HK$32 million). Cash and
bank deposits were held mainly in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group has foreign operations and certain of its
net assets are exposed to the risk of foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations. The management regularly monitors the foreign
currency exchange risk of the Group and may consider hedging

activities when necessary.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group maintained secured bank
borrowings of HK$54 million (2020: HK$34 million) at operating
subsidiary level financing its working capital. Besides, the Group
also maintained aggregate composite banking facilities of
approximately HK$35 million (2020: HK$26 million) with
commercial banks, of which approximately HK$4 million (2020:

HK$3 million) were utilised.

The Group ran into net current liabilities of HK$57 million as at
the year end (2020: HK$25 million), with current assets being
less than current liabilities. As at 31 March 2021, the gearing
ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance lease payables
divided by shareholders’ equity) was approximately 10.1%
(2020: 6.4%).

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2021, land and buildings held for own use and
investment properties with a carrying value of approximately
HK$155 million (31 March 2020: HK$52 million) were pledged

to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed 374 (2020: 348)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical

insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,

Taiwan, Macau and Singapore.

In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Longhua,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of

fabrics.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains
well-established relationships with trustworthy raw material
suppliers and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each
model of its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and
Quality Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also
requires all business partners, raw material suppliers and
production vendors to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory

requirements on product safety.

The Group now has over 30 suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the
suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their

trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.

The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as bespoke

service and communication with members via mails and emails.

Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the

Group's business.
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The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brand for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new and improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects

other parties’ intellectual property rights.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the

sustainability of the Group’s business.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 62, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 44
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hongkong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
November 2001 and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in
December 2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding
Chinese Award by the World Chinese Business Investment
Foundation. He was also awarded 2004 Associateship by The
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in
January 2004. He is a senior fellow of Social Enterprise Research
Academy. He is currently a member of CreateSmart Initiative
Vetting Committee under Create Hong Kong, and an adjunct
professor of, and a member of the higher education advisory
committee of, the faculty of design and environment of
Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council, an honorary president of the island regional association
of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association and the
vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber of Commerce. He is the
husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of
Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 62, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is the Group’s
vice-chairman. She is responsible for the Group’s merchandising
management and retail operations management. She has over 44
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. She was
awarded Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur Excellence
Award in November 2016. She is a member of Zonta Club of
New Territories, an honorary president and council member of
Hong Kong Federation of Women, a co-chairman of HK Tianjin
Women’s Federation, a member of HKFW Women Entrepreneurs
Committee and of Hong Kong Women Professionals &
Entrepreneurs Association, a delegate of All-China Women’s
Federation, Zhuhai, and an honorary president of All-China
Women’s Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association Limited,
of the island regional association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides
Association, and of the council of Youth DreamMakers
Association. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and
Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 43, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 61, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 33
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 32 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also
appointed as notary public in December 2009. She is a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 60, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the CEO of Archiledture Limited. He has 30 years’
experience in international marketing and senior management
role in both the semiconductor and solid-state lighting
industries. Mr. Chu graduated from the University of Essex with
a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from the University of
Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen (alias name: LEE Shuk Ying,
Helen), aged 67, is an independent non-executive director
appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is currently the
director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has over 30 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from Queen’s University in Canada. She is the
vice-chairman of the board of directors, a member of the finance
committee, and the chairman of the information technology
committee of Heep Hong Society, and is the honorary treasurer,
the chairman of the information technology development
committee and a member of the social service committee of
Hong Kong YWCA.
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Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 33, is the deputy chief executive
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall operations and
design and development functions. In addition, he is also
responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
the Arts London of the United Kingdom. He is a member of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association. He is the son of
Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 51, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 30 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (“HKCGI”) and the Chartered Governance Institute of
the United Kingdom, a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom and a holder

of the practitioner’s endorsement of HKCGI.

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



RHFEREEARQARA (FA28)) REKMELTF
TREEDBIREBCEEREEREER » WK
ABEIEZHE By BEHE BHEEIAZDE

EERFA -

EEERTR

BRT UREE T BIRSCEA2. RSN RARRBE=
B HFZAZt-HLEFER-—EBT(EBH
BRZABRARES LHRB) (T LWER ) K
BUAMBERERTR (EXERTA D P2Fa
53 -

FRMRSLEA2.11%
RIEBECEERATRZFAMRIEA2. 1K EERT
BBEBzACESH  RTEAR - ALHRE-B
B BEAEERESE(ESE)EE IRE
THHER ZEESRAERZEERBRELRLT
CEMBERSHERRREIRERE - A
RATRERFERNEEASE -

BEXZEETA
AABCHEMETRAMBI0OMB 2 EMBITAE
BETESXZ2BEETA(EETAD FRHE
FEEAQARZZTRATA - EAALFAZES
ERERER SESREE-2--F=Z/A=1-
ALEFERNGETRETARBZRE -

Annual Report 2021 4 ¥4

(o Sk 8
Corporate Governance Report

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provision A.2.1 as below, the
company has complied with the code provisions listed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to provide leadership and control,
formulate the group’s business strategies, assess and address
risks in achieving the group’s objectives and uphold corporate
governance functions, including the aspects of environmental,
social and governance reporting. Operational decision making is

delegated to the management team.

The Board comprises six directors, three of which are executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and three are independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian,
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, six board meetings were
held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with Code
Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code which states that the Chairman
should hold meeting with the independent non-executive
directors without the other directors of the company present.
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the meetings were held in the
form of video conference. The attendance of each director is set

out as follows:

Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 6/6
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 5/5
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 5/5
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 6/6
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 6/6
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 6/6
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, of the company was held. The

attendance of each director is set out as follows:

HER 8
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 11
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 11
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 1/1
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 11
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 11
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 11

The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
The directors have provided records of the training they received
to the company. The details of training records provided of each

director are set out as follows:

= FriEszsEdi R B BAlRHEE P 3 B
Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent
REALE PIVAES-Z St BEREEZES 3/ B
Mr. Chan Yum Kit BEMNAE KB The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 3 hours

—EF--%—-AtH

2021 R ERRE

BRNAKBZ

7 January 2021
TILBELE 2021 F B REFRM BERESES 3B
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley BRNEABZ The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 3 hours

—E--%-AtH

2021 FEHEPERK

BRMNAEKES
7 January 2021
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=

Director

REEEE
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

KREHRE
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

BERRZE
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

AEELZTERENEBE=ZE=—F=HA=1+—H
tFEERITEBEMEMACHEMSERERRE

2R o

FriEszsEdi Rk B

Training received and date

NREBENHEEN  ESEER

—E-—-%—-HThA

Role of Company Director II:
Board Practices

19 January 2021

Global Investment Outlook 2021
and Strategic Positioning under
Current Global Macro Trends

—E--5-A+N\H

Global Investment Outlook 2021
and Strategic Positioning under
Current Global Macro Trends

18 January 2021

NRAEBHBE  EHRRE
BE
—E--F%-ATHA

Role of Company Director I:

Overview of Legal & Regulatory

Framework
14 January 2021

BAlRHE

Training provider

EHREEEY
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

EHREEEY
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

BBESET
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Fir 5 B ]

Time spent

2/NBF

2 hours

2/NBF

2 hours

2/0NEF

2 hours

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian had provided confirmation on her

fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional

development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2021 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b.  Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c.  Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the progress on achieving the

objectives.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one

executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one remuneration
committee meeting was held. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
the meeting was held in the form of video conference. The

attendance of each committee member is set out as follows:

o FE R 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 11
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 11
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The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has approved the terms of

non-executive director’s appointment.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out below:

AE
HK$ Number of person
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the group’s

independent auditor is analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
Bt IR Audit services 1,300,000
FEET R Non-audit services 72,000
1,372,000
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, four audit committee
meetings were held. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
meetings were held in the form of video conference. The

attendance of each committee member is set out as follows:

o FE RE 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 4/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 4/4
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During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems
which are essential for effective and efficient operations of the
group and are fundamental in the thorough and regular
evaluation of the nature and extent of the risks to which the
group is exposed. These systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal control is defined
as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:
e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the group, focusing on three major business cycles of
the group, under COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. The Board had been
satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems on
monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the
directors were dedicated to implement various initiatives to
further enhance the existing risk management and internal
control systems alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.
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During the year, the group has maintained an internal audit
function with internal resources and engaged external
consultants to assist the management in order to identify,

evaluate and manage significant risks of the group.

The group complies with the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in view of fulfilling its obligations to disclose inside information

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

which give a true and fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The statement of the independent auditor of the company
regarding their responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s report

on pages 45 to 56.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopts a dividend policy under which when
considering declaration of dividends, the company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves in order to meet its working
capital and future growth requirements, and shall preserve its
shareholders’ value by allowing shareholders to participate in

the company’s profit distribution.

The Board shall declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the company in compliance with the articles of
association of the company and all applicable regulatory

framework.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the company plays an important role
in supporting the board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board, facilitating induction and professional
development of the Board members and advising on governance.
The company secretary of the company is Ms. Pang Lin, who is
a full-time employee of the group and reports to the Board. All
directors of the company have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that Board policies and
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are

followed.

Ms. Pang was appointed as the company secretary of the
company in accordance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. Her
academic and professional qualifications and relevant
experience are disclosed in the directors and senior management

profiles.

Ms. Pang has provided to the company the proof that she has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has taken no
less than fifteen hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended 31 March 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND COMMUNICATION

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.
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If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong

Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the

proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.
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Directors’ Report

The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the
company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its

subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman Islands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong

respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 9 and the Management

Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 18 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 9 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 10 to 18 of this annual report and notes 29 and 30 to

the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the

group’s total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable

to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
FEERBESHEIL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
The largest supplier 29%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 59%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
179 and 180.
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DIVIDEND

The board did not declare the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 September 2020 (2019: Nil). The
directors do not declare the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$30,000 (2020: HK$20,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no movements

during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its
Mainland China employees. The group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its Mainland China employees. The group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with such plans beyond the annual contributions

described above.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the employees’
payroll to the CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
CPF. The subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its

contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Yum Kit and Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with article
87 of the company’s articles of association and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

REHzERER EaBYEI
Beneficial Approximate EEME
BEsgR interest percentage Nature of
Name of director in shares of interests interest
BRI T E 193,616,000 67.24% NG
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% Edi
Family
2,100,000 0.73% BA
Personal
(H1EE(1)R(2)
(Notes (1) and (2))
BBt 193,616,000 67.24% NG
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% ENi
Family
2,100,000 0.73% 18 A
Personal
(Bat1)%2)
(Notes (1) and (2))
REZEE 900,000 0.31% @A
Mr. Chan Sze Chun Personal
BEREzL 28,000 0.01% {EPN
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

3,616,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments
Limited (“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially
owned by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively.
Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested
in the 3,616,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain director also has beneficial interest
in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting or to participate in any distribution or winding

up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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BERAHR

Name of shareholder

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2021 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

EEAREEE

ERTROZBNEI L

HREROGEH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

Bt : Super Result ZBRATIHREERBRZ LT HHIE
BEFA46.7%K%46.7% °

BRERER EX[ESREBTHRAERES 2E
Hm I —EEARRAESERETETHRAE 2 EHI
BERADARBIZRPERAEIBMZRER
BExELMpRs R“E-—F=ZA=1+—-H"
YEAMATREADTDROIEERD P HEEER

RHA o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

190,000,000 65.99% (#1&E) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the
company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
32(a) to the consolidated financial statements fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The transactions are exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of

the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

On 28 May 2020, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a facility letter with an existing bank for
a revised banking facility up to an aggregate amount of
HK$65,000,000. Pursuant to the terms of the facility letter, the
Group undertakes with the bank that the directors, Mr. Chan and
Ms. Tsui, shall remain to be the directors and the largest

shareholder of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the company is currently in force and was in force

throughout the year.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution of the
re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors
of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 57 to 176, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



T8 S A Sl e
Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

We identified the impairment of right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter due
to inherent uncertainty pertaining to the assumptions
required in determining the future discounted cash flow
forecasts of each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
being the individual retail stores and involvement of
significant degree of management judgement and

estimation in determining the amount of provision.

Management judgement is required to identify those

CGUs requiring provision for or reversal of impairment.

Impairment losses, net of reversal, on right-of-use assets of
HK$17,973,000 and property, plant and equipment of
HK$3,434,000 respectively were recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2021. As at 31 March 2021, the
carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment were HK$33,858,000 and
HK$379,353,000 respectively.

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

included:

e Evaluating management’s identification of CGUs, the
allocation of assets to each CGU identified and the
impairment assessment methodology adopted by

management;

e Comparing the most significant inputs used in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue and related future expenses,
with the historical performance of these retail stores
and the budgets and forecasts approved by directors
of the Company, taking into account recent
developments in the retail sector and the future

operating plans for the Group;

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the discount rates

applied in the cash flow forecasts; and

e Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management on the inputs used to evaluate the

extent of impact on the estimated future cash flows.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of the inherent estimation uncertainty
within the assumptions made by management when
determining the provision of inventories.

Management has determined the allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items at the end of reporting
period with reference to the aged inventories analysis,
historical consumption trends and by comparing the
carrying amount of inventories with their estimated net
realisable values.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$39,270,000.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the basis used to
determine the inventory provision policy and the
information used by management to determine the
inventory provisions;

e Testing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing brackets by comparing the
individual items selected with underlying records
which indicated the season of production of the
item;

e Testing the mathematical accuracy of inventory
provisions made by management;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
inventory provision policy by comparing
management’s forecasts of the net amounts of unsold
inventories of each season with the historical sales
trends for the current and prior years; and

* Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
estimates of the net realisable values of the
inventories including the comparing of the amounts,
on a sample basis, to actual sales transactions

subsequent to the reporting date.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings held for own use

We identified the valuation of investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use as a key audit matter
because the valuations of these properties requires the

exercise of significant judgement and estimation.

The fair values of the investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were assessed by the directors
based on independent valuations prepared by an
independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers. The key estimates and assumptions adopted by
the external property valuer included capitalisation rate

and the selection of comparable market transactions.

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use were valued at HK$297,783,000 and
HK$377,028,000 as at 31 March 2021, respectively.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties and land and buildings held for own use

included:

e  Obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuer engaged by
the Group and on which the directors” assessment of
the fair values of investment properties and land and

buildings held for own use was based;

e Assessing the external property valuer’s
qualifications, experience and expertise in the
properties being valued and considering their

objectivity and independence;

e Discussing with the external property valuer, to
understand the valuation methodology applied and
the key estimates and assumptions adopted in their

valuations and assess the reasonableness; and

e  Comparing the significant unobservable inputs and
comparable market transactions adopted by the
external property valuer with available market data,

on a sample basis.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]



54

T 7 A il R o
Independent Auditor’s Report

BRASEREMERARERR (A)
(REIEHEZMAELZHRLA)

BREMBEAREMBRRABENEL

EMNER RYURSUBBRRERBES A FHEH
REFRERMERNEAERRARNESER
& WHEEREMERNZBE RS - RIFER
BZEENHERRE BT FRER)RE - KRit
ZOABERERMER - AR HRENA
B HEMHMATESHAESE  SERER
BAKFHRE  EFRERBER(FTBETER)E
THET  ER -BERERBULFERFAREHRE -
SHERBRA AT LA ERFF R SRR S - MRS EAHE
MEBNERERTELEFS M BEIRREME MK
FERI TS IRAR P AE H BV TR E - RI R B RV EE SRR
AREEEK -

ERBE(BBEAEI)ETHEINBRESD  HME
R7TEEHE  RETEEEREE - HAT :

o REABIFFTEANAFRERMEZELRS B R
REEERERMANER - Rt RATET
RFUEHELAR URENZEMNEEDN
ERE  FRARMERNER - ANEKEER
BEW R EE  AE ERER - ERMRML
ERAREES 2 £ FH bR IRE KT
BYMERHERBM AR SRR EHE
EJik-EGOEPN =45 Sud: o)

o  THERTHEBENAIES  URIAEENE
g  BEMYFYE BEXEERBEHNE
MMEBRIR -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Faith Corazon Del Rosario.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

= —F-FF
2021 2020
M &F THERT FRET
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
W &= Revenue 5 127,283 191,604
SHE AR Cost of sales (40,378) (44,571)
EF Gross profit 86,905 147,033
Hg A Other income 6 32,605 7,105
Hitz R EE Other gains and losses 7 11,787 (2,730)
DERBEERX Distribution and selling expenses (102,158) (204,879)
THREMSERX Administrative and other operating expenses (58,217) (65,663)
REEE Loss from operations (29,078) (119,134)
REMELAREEHZ Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of
Wz (E18) investment properties 14 14,319 (25,425)
& B AR Finance costs (4,838) (4,824)
BRELATE 1B Loss before taxation (19,597) (149,383)
FEH (AX)ER Income tax (expense) credit 8 (3,608) 2,917
FRAEE Loss for the year 9 (23,205) (146,466)
Hit2H WK (Bx%) Other comprehensive income (expense)
ETEEH 7 HEEEa 2 Item that will not be reclassified to
EE profit or loss:
BEEERLTHEESEY Gain (loss) on revaluation of land and
ZEfWE () buildings held for own use 23,819 (8,547)
REZAREEFT D BEE Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BwmZHEE profit or loss:
BEBIEBRER Exchange differences arising on translation
=5 of foreign operations 803 2,901
24,622 (5,646)
AEEEEmKE (BX) Total comprehensive income (expense) for
wmE the year 1,417 (152,112)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

= —F-FF
2021 2020
B &t FTER TR
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
THATEERFEE (Loss)/profit for the year
(B8]) &F attributable to:
RAFEEA Owners of the Company (22,751) (146,694)
IR = Non-controlling interests (454) 228
(23,205) (146,466)
THATEEZE YRS Total comprehensive income (expense)
(FAX) %8 : attributable to:
RARFEA Owners of the Company 1,871 (152,340)
FERRER Non-controlling interests (454) 228
1,417 (152,112)
BRER Loss per share
ER (BT Basic (HK dollars) 13 (0.08) (0.51)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
MN-ZE-—F=H=+—H At 31 March 2021

—8=--% —B-%%
2021 2020
i3 THERT TR
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
REYE Investment properties 14 297,783 259,598
WE BMERRE Property, plant and equipment 14 379,353 371,727
FHREEE Right-of-use assets 15 33,858 23,803
gffEe Deposits paid 16 5,240 24,714
EEFESHEE Deferred tax assets 23 351 566
716,585 680,408
REBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 17 39,270 54,862
JE UK BR TR e H i BE WX Trade and other receivables 18 32,741 27,205
RITHEBRES Bank balances and cash 19 17,567 31,829
89,578 113,896
mE B fE Current liabilities
&1 BR R 2 L fth BB 1S X Trade and other payables 20 31,500 42,954
HEAE Lease liabilities 21 61,467 61,593
FEASBiTE Tax payable 110 119
BE Borrowings 22 53,543 34,080
146,620 138,746
nEBEEFE Net current liabilities (57,042) (24,850)
EELERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 659,543 655,558

Annual Report 2021 44 #t Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]



LA MBS DL
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZE-—F=F=+—H8 At 31 March 2021

—EZ—F —E-ERF
2021 2020
M = THET THET
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities 21 19,920 27,067
REFESHEE Deferred tax liabilities 23 107,668 97,953
127,588 125,020
BEEFE Net assets 531,955 530,538
EXRRE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 24 2,880 2,880
1 Reserves 530,049 528,178
VNGTE, DN 3 Equity attributable to owners of the
PR 3R Company 532,929 531,058
R E R Non-controlling interests (974) (520)
HIRRER Total equity 531,955 530,538
E/R1 76BN BRREN_ZE_—F~A The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 176 were
THHAERKREEEREYHFTRE  WHTHES approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
REx=E: 29 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
BRI ®RIE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o= 55
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

KAAERARG
Attributable to owners of the Company
REER
(BHtEE)
EERBOR  NREGRR Retaned FERER
B RbEE 41 ] ARE Statutory Property proit N BRREE
Share Share Other Exchange reserve revaluation  (accumulated it controlling Total
aapital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses) Total interests equity
TEn Tin T TEn TEn Tin T TEn Tin T&n
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
(i) (R
(Note i) (Note i)

RZ2-nEMA-A At1 April 2019 2,880 05,327 ] 19274 9,336 455,012 131,448 083,398 (748) 682,630

En(EE) T (Loss profit or the year - - - - - - (146,694) (146,694 0 (146,466)

BERAL RS2 Loss on evaluaton ofland and hudings held

EfiEE for own use - 9,952) - 9.952) - 9,952)

EfiERRLER Income tax reating o revaluation of land and

BENfER buildings held for own use - - - 1,405 - 1,405 - 1,405
BEENRHELL Exchange diference arisng fom transation of
EXEE foreign operation B - 2901 B = - 2901 = 2901

kS (AR Total comprehensive income (expenses) - - 2901 - (8547) (146,694) (152,340) 18 (152,112)

HWZZZZERA-A AT April 2020 2,680 05,327 il 0175 9,336 446,465 (15,246) 531,058 (520) 530,538

EnEE Loss for the year - - - - - - (22,751) (22,751) (454) (23,203)

FERALERESZ Gain on revaluatio offand and buidings el

e for own use B = - 30,400 - 30,400 - 30,400

EftEFRRLER Income tax relaing to revaluaton of land and

BEN2FER buildings held for own use = = = (6,581) - (6,581) - (6,581)
BEENRRFEL, Exchange difference arising from transltion of
EiZE foreign aperation - - 803 - - - 803 - 803

ks (R 8E Total comprehensive income (expenses) - - 803 - 1B819 (22,751) 1,871 (454) 1417

RZE-F=A=1-A At31 March 2021 2,880 05,327 il 0978 9,336 470,264 (37,997) 532,929 (974) 531,955

MPsE : Notes:

(i) HibEBEA-SE_F—A-t+HAEX}ZAR (i) Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
EEEATTWE B A T 2 B34S w8 5 b E of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
ABREZAANATORITRACEBZELE - value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange thereof

pursuant to a group reorganisation which became effective on 25
January 2002.
(i) BEINESBEELCEERE2PEARENE ([P (ii)  According to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws

Annual Report 2021 4 ¥4

B 1) R ZIX’ATZEP@IWi&M]‘%"T,,f”iW
BEERBSBLE 2R RBEEESRBIRER
BAES -BERRIUZHEESELARFER
Bi&ERN (EREDEREE) 210%EREHEE
TN BEEZESZEREZHAMERZ50%
Bl - WEESTAFEEERRBRDHMEE
AAZ - HEARBHE AR ZESSTHERE
BRESNERIRIRBRENEE R=F
ZRFE+A-TEHBIIAMNER A-T2RF
—A—HE AHERTHEREEEM{ - ALY
EOBTRBREANESFHER-

applicable to wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises,
Mainland China subsidiaries of the Company are required to set up
two statutory reserve funds, general reserve fund and staff general
fund. General reserve fund was set up by appropriating at least
10% of their annual profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
regulations, until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. This fund can be used to make good losses or to
convert into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained profits to staff
general fund was made at the discretion of the board of directors of
Mainland China subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon the revision of the
law on 27 October 2005 and no transfer to staff general fund has
been made since.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

—E--5 —B-Ef
2021 2020
THET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEH Operating activities
BR A B 1R Loss before taxation (19,597) (149,383)
BT HEH AR Adjustments for:
ELE= 929N Finance costs 4,838 4,824
AEWA Interest income (124) (33)
REMEQARELZS 2 (REH) (Gain) loss on changes in fair value of
EE investment properties (14,319) 25,425
NE BMEREZEZTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12,180 16,865
FRAREEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 38,907 58,275
M BMEREZEZRERSE Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment 3,434 7,525
ERREE ZRERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 17,973 43,623
FEWERR 2 RERE Impairment losses on trade receivables = 81
FEMR AR Reversal of write-down of inventories - (244)
20198 M iESHAEBEASER Covid-19 related rent concessions (19,677) =
REBALBAESH 2 WE Gain on early termination of lease contracts (9,280) (431)
HEME  BERRZMHEZ (WE)  (Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and
&8 equipment (80) 1,123
R EEESE B2 Operating cash flows before movements in
RERERE working capital 14,255 7,650
FERD Decrease in inventories 16,455 5,557
FEWBR A R L FE W RN 2 (Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables
(1) w2 (7,177) 8,795
FERERRREMMEMRZ (Decrease) increase in trade and other payables
OGR4 120 (12,904) 9,119
BIESANBERD Decrease in provisions for onerous contracts - (865)
REXBRBERE Cash from operations 10,629 30,256
ENHIA Tax paid
—ENEERNEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 9) -
—-BEREBBINFER — Income tax outside Hong Kong paid (259) (571)
RETBHFBRESEH Net cash from operating activities 10,361 29,685
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HEBESREER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

—B=-—-F i i 32
2021 2020
FHET THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
REED Investing activities
REHERS Refund of rental deposits 10,277 3,819
EWFHE Interest received 124 33
HEYZE MERRXEZFTEFHIE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 80 _
BAME BERSZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,162) (7,364)
XNHEEERE Payment of rental deposits (1,607) (2,219)
REZBHRE (R REFE Net cash from (used in) investing activities 4,712 (5,731)
RMETEH Financing activities
BEHEEE Repayment of lease liabilities (43,934) (48,597)
BERTEE Repayment of bank borrowings (24,519) (581)
2R FE Interest paid (4,838) (4,824)
MEEZRERE Proceeds from new borrowings 43,982 28,169
METHFAREFR Net cash used in financing activities (29,309) (25,833)
ReRATZEEMRLD FHE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (14,236) (1,879)
RENZRERAEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 31,829 30,720
EXEH 2 HE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (26) 2,988
RERZRERAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
REBITEBREERES representing bank balances and cash 17,567 31,829
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the "Company";
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the "Group")
is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
ultimate holding company is Super Result Consultants
Limited ("Super Result"), a limited company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chan Yum Kit, the chairman
and executive director of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, executive director of the Company, each holds
46.7% equity interest in Super Result. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section of Corporate

Information in the Company’s annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
design, manufacture and retail of fashion apparel and
accessories. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

With the Covid-19 epidemic spreading globally,
governments around the world and international
organisations have taken a series of preventive and control
measures as an effort to contain the Covid-19 epidemic.
The Covid-19 epidemic has affected overall performance
across the industry, leading to a global recession and weak
market demand, which put the Group under pressure in
respect of its sales capabilities, and resulted reduction in
the Group’s revenue in the current year as disclosed in the

relevant note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 "Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions" and the
Amendment to HKFRS 16 "Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021".

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year (continued)
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2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8 "Definition of Material”

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states "information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity". The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends on
the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information,
in the context of the financial statements taken as a

whole.
The application of the amendments in the current year

had no impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year (continued)

2.2 Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS
16 "Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions" and
Amendment to HKFRS 16 "Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021"

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. These amendments introduce
a new practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
assess whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a
lease modification. The practical expedient only
applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the

following conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for

the lease immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year (continued)
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2.2 Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS

16 "Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions" and
Amendment to HKFRS 16 "Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions beyond 30 June 2021" (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 "Lease" ("HKFRS 16") if
the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted
for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event

OcCcurs.

The application of the amendments had no impact to
the opening accumulated losses at 1 April 2020. The
Group has benefited from reduction of lease payments
on several leases in Hong Kong, Singapore, Macau
and Mainland China. The Group has derecognised the
part of lease liability that has been extinguished by the
forgiveness of lease payments using the discount rates
originally applied to these leases respectively,
resulting in a decrease in the lease liabilities of
HK$19,677,000, which has been recognised as
variable lease payments in profit or loss for the current

year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’®

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’®

Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 2020*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
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22,

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS mentioned
below, the directors of the Company (the "Directors")
anticipate that the application of all other new and other
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)"

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification

of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period.

Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle

the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;

and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)" (continued)

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32

"Financial Instruments: Presentation".

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the

corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Pending clarification on the application of relevant
requirements of the amendments, the Group will further
assess whether application of the amendments will have an
impact on the classification of these borrowings. The
impacts on application, if any, will be disclosed in the

Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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22,

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise

to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3, for leasing transactions in which the
tax deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant assets
and liabilities as a whole. Temporary differences relating to

relevant assets and liabilities are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with the right-of-use assets

and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to
the amendments amounted to HK$28,071,000 (net of
impairment of HK$14,885,000) and HK$44,856,000,
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing

the full impact of the application of the amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. GBANBHRECRLHEERTEeNHE 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

31 REUBRRZEHEE

POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
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statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$57,042,000 as at 31
March 2021.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
generated operating cash flows of approximately
HK$10,361,000. As at 31 March 2021, total cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$17,567,000
were held by the Group and unutilised bank facilities
amounted to approximately HK$31,963,000 were
available. On 18 June 2021, the Group entered into a
provisional agreement with an independent third party
for disposal of land and buildings held for own use in
Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$30,000,000 (the
"Agreement") and received a deposit of HK$1,500,000.
The Directors expect the remaining sale proceeds of
HK$28,500,000 will be received on or before 18
August 2021 in accordance with the terms as specified
in the Agreement. A gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment of HK$143,000 will be

recognised accordingly.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E-T-—F=R=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
FEMBBRZEHEERTESTHEE 3.
(#)

3.1 REVBBMRZFmHEELE(F)
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3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Based on the aforesaid factors and cash flow forecast
for the coming twelve months, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet in full its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings, which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and

services.

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



Annual Report 2021 4 4E

REVBBRZEFNEERETRETHE

REUMBERZEHERE (F)

ARAERERFEATE2HRETETE
FREFHEEEMUMREBEER
X2 B BERZERESATEER
EREAEMMEEL AT - EEE 1R
EESEENDIAER  FEEZEEE
FEEZER  BEREAMSSRER
ErTEESEEERBUEEZERHE -
BRZEGEEUBEBRRATER RRE
MENARBEIREZEEEE - HFE
MBRELE2RRODBER T 5
ERZURDBERZNZRE - REE
BUBREENB1HRIMFEEZRS
MEAREFERELERAUZE ZFTER
3D AE - Bl E B S F B SE255
(FEI2ASR FEREBSEAE
365R [ BERE 2 EABERM -

FEMEENAAREFEBASR TS S
HEEAZEEUNERRARERKE
REMELENKERR BN - REZE
EHETHMMES2REUNERZEE
DNEHRRARERRERR -

RUADRERZ 2RENEUREER
Rzt REZENRERFITEENR
ABBZEMEREUGFEERBEZA
RE - HEFEEREEUEGELT EANE
REFDRZE °

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 "Share-based Payment", leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 "Inventories" or value

in use in HKAS 36 "Impairment of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and

best use.

For investment properties and land and buildings held
for own use which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of

the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement

date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable

assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the

owners of the Company.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future

use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any indirectly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income. Gains or losses arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a

property-by-property basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment
The land held for own use and buildings thereon are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

e when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

e when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
If a property becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly

to retained profits.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to retained

profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired terms of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 50 years from the

date of completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of 5

years and the period of

the lease
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years
Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at

initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is
presented as "right-of-use assets" in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are

classified as property, plant and equipment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
April 2020 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease

component and are accounted for by applying other

applicable standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carpark spaces and certain
retail stores that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line

basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the

lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and

the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial

position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" ("HKFRS 9") and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of

right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;
and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date

of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more

underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect

the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.
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HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BAMKBRECFLHEERITEHNE 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 FEEHKE (&) 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
HE (&) Leases (continued)
KEEELRFAA () The Group as a lessee (continued)
20193 RN FESHFHEEHSER Covid-19-related rent concessions
20198 R ESHREEEERNES In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a
THMS  AEECRIEERAAITERS direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
3t EEASUTHERENERT » RF Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not
EZEEHESERBEB to assess whether the change is a lease modification if

all of the following conditions are met:

o HEMNFMEBFIEHHEELMBITN e the change in lease payments results in revised
REEZZSFNEEREER consideration for the lease that is substantially
HE RN ZALE the same as, or less than, the consideration for

the lease immediately preceding the change;

o HENZMNEMRLEZEEERN e any reduction in lease payments affects only
—EBE-—FEXA=+ B2 52 payments originally due on or before 30 June
MR R 2022; and

e HEWHMKERKHETLESE M e there is no substantive change to other terms and
EE) o conditions of the lease.

ERATEE SRS ERENWHE A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for

ENHESHHENERAEUR - changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions

sHE A E R RREERS16E N the same way it would account for the changes applying

ABE (NS HAIERSET)  -BERZ HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.

NERRER R AR ERSEEIE o Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for

HEHEEES TURE  URKRERS as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are

SR YN SEHREBRNER adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a

HEDAERE - corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in

the period in which the event occurs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value

model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 "Revenue
from Contracts with Customers" ("HKFRS 15") to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their

relative stand-alone selling prices.
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E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLI
3.2

CIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are

considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to
the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant

cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E-T-—F=R=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit

or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E-T-—F=R=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention

in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash

flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E-T-—F=R=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no

longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets
(including deposits paid, trade and other receivables
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLI
3.2

CIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed

individually.

For all other financial assets, ECL is measured at 12m
ECL unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk

has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if

available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit

default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

B

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environments of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes

past due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any

collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

the borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or

past due event;

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



3. HEMBBRRZEHEERTESHEER
(&)

3.2 FESFHE (&)
2RI A (#F)
EHEE (&)
TREE R RE (F)
(i) FEREEHEE (&)

o MERANERARBREBRA
BRRENEBERSHERM
BAERAREERAREST
ZENER &

o BRABTUREHEREREM

HMBER -
(iv) MEE R
ERETHTERBREVRKES

B U el T RE RS (BIANE B BB BRHE
EAWERTER  UREERE)
REBRMEEREE - EEEE
ARRR (HEE) HMENEH
BEEMENAZANEBWRDOREFE
ITIRE AT IR B o MH B R BUH
RBE FMNERBEEESPE

=
e ©

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

kS

—F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries

are recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a

loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and borrowings) are subsequently measured

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E-T-—F=R=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire. On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and
only when the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control"
of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E-T-—F=R=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants

will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under "other income".

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss (from which the deferred tax asset
arises) can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which

the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
above, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E-T-—F=R=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the
right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 "Income Taxes" requirements to the
leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net

deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



3. HEMBBRRZEHEERTESHEER

()

3.2 FESFHE (&)
Fris# (&)

P15

MAELEFSHESR R EE

E0FR  AARTEE - WEREAE
BRAEEBEAETERUSNFAES
BEREAMAEHAE  LAFIUT
M RERNBERT - AIRNAEHEER
HEAMAEHEE  REEREHEE
BT SHIERE PR IS BB ¢

e HAHMEHEEMEEMS A
ABRRAEEGF R FREELES

pet

C

& ;

RERBRZEENEEZA
£

s REEMSHEENEEMS B
LEEMEENARER —HRBHE
BT EP—HRBHFREHER :

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

—ERBER RN

al
%'5:5

TENERHER - SLEE
=T 8I1E B R S ETAFT A REE
EFREHAEEFTEFEIRE
IEFE FT 1S L E B W BAI B 49 HR
B BFREEGRAHR
SEHEENBERHHFERE
& AEANERZEENEHE
ZEfE-

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the individual
entity or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

e in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
individual entity or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

e in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:
- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time

value of money is material).

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average
exchange rate for the period unless exchange rate
fluctuate significantly during the period in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the

profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

(i) RS T EMFS  BNERES (i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

BEEREE following conditions applies:
(@ ZERHESEEER—SBEZK (@) The entity and the Group are members of the
ERF (EEAR - HEAR same group (which means that each parent,
K [5) % B 8 2 B 1 Lt [ A B subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
) o the others).
by —BERAEZ-—SEZHEN (b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
AREE LT (RBEEETK the other entity (or an associate or joint
EQNFZHERATAREE D venture of a member of a group of which
TME—EERAEEET the other entity is a member).

|
il
>
al

(c) MEBRHAR-—F=H28E (c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
NG third party.
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(d)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various geographical

locations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that certain of the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties in Mainland China
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. For certain investment properties
in Hong Kong on which the ’sale' presumption is not
rebutted, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties in Hong
Kong above the qualified cost as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the
investment properties in Hong Kong above the qualified

cost on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses regularly whether right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units to which these assets
belong would be determined by reference to the higher of
their value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. Value
in use is determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Due to inherent risk associated with estimations in
the timing and magnitude of the future cash flows
calculated with certain growth rate as key input and fair
value less costs of disposal, the estimated recoverable
amount of the assets may be different from their actual
recoverable amount and profit or loss could be affected by
the accuracy of the estimations. Furthermore, the cash
flows projections, growth rate and discount rate are subject
to greater uncertainties in the current year due to
uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including

potential disruptions in the Group's retail operations.

Valuation of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis
and historical consumption trends. Based on this review,
write-down of inventories will be made when the estimated
net realisable value of inventories decline below their
carrying amounts. Due to changes in market trends, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit or

loss could be affected by accuracy of this estimation.
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use are calculated by an
independent firm of qualified professional property valuers
by making reference to the capitalisation rate and
comparable market transactions. The valuation models used
by the property valuer make use of market inputs. Should
changes be made to the market inputs, the corresponding
valuation of investment properties and land and buildings

held for own use would change.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

The Group generated sales of fashion apparel and
accessories with customers mainly through its own retail
stores. For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised at a point in time when the goods are delivered

to the customers.
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E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
Revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
at the point where the customer purchases and takes the
goods at the retail stores directly or when the goods have
been transported to the customers' specified location
(delivery). Transportation and other related activities that
incurred before customers obtain control of the related
products are considered as fulfilment activities. Payment of
the transaction price is generally due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods in the retail stores.
The transaction price received by the Group for goods that
require delivery is recognised as a contract liability until

the goods have been delivered to the customer.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a customer loyalty programme for sales
through the Group’s retail stores where customers
accumulate award points for purchases made which entitle
them to redeem award points as sales discounts in the
future. The transaction price is allocated to the product and
the award points on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The award points expire every year and customers
can redeem the award points any time before the specified
expiration date. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the award points are used or expired.
Contract liabilities, presented under “accrued charges”, are
recognised until the award points are used or expired. The

sales discount is recognised against revenue.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation for contracts with customers

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied performance
obligations, including award points under the customer
loyalty programme, have original expected durations of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied performance
obligations or customer loyalty programme are not

disclosed.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
Wz ko BER (&)
DEER

AEBRBBEVEEEEXEY - REOAKE
BRITHREEANEANIB2HUD BEER KT
RREZER B AREC2HRTIMEET
ERDH - WEKLE S HRESERUTET 2

| E

e ERAEREREEBHEARMERED
iR R o

s EBTBRNEBERTEANGBREARR
o URARERLE BP - RN
REEERMEREDRME -

RGO BRERIBE2MERMS - A5H
ZERTHREBAESDRUTEEEREAT
S| ABELZEE

WERAXN2EZZEDBAEE ZHERR
X AEAZEDMEEEEZINEREEM
THREATE2HOH -

AHEATERDWBEANIBERRAZHES
HEBFR(TREBEAMBA - HRERER
URETITBRRAMEERS) - MEHAE

PEHERETFE2HRDE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

e The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of house

brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

e The outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China and
sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets

attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is
loss from operations with the exclusion of other income,
other gains and losses and certain administrative and other
operating expenses. Income tax is not allocated to

reportable segments.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reported
to the Group’s senior executive management. As a result,
reportable segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in the financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the

EETEEKEER o same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
0 BEEN ATFEH MM
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong  Total reportable segments
ZR--F ZZ-%F -“¥--F “Z-%F R “BCIERE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
TET TET THET TET THET TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
HREF MR Revenue from external customers 55,305 97,788 71,978 93,816 127,283 191,604
2 E & Inter-segment revenue 13,807 21,238 10,195 23,005 24,002 44,243
L6 Segment revenue 69,112 119,026 82,173 116,821 151,285 235847
FHER Segment loss (9,518)  (36,783)  (19,158)  (35,927)  (28,676)  (72,710)
R EAHEERFTA  Amount regularly provided to the
TEHOAEESH Group's senior executive
THREBABREZ management included in the
&8 measurement of segment results:
NE BEKRENE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 136 3,321 314 4,009 450 7,330
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23,948 35,423 14,666 20,508 38,614 55,931
N BERREZ Impairment losses on property, plant
FEEE  MREE and equipment, net of reversal 5 1,455 1,592 2,503 1,597 3,958
FREEREZHERE - Impairment losses on right-of-use
MEEE assets, net of reversal 2,862 24,913 9,326 18,710 12,188 43,623
ERERZRESS Impairment losses on trade receivables - = - 81 - 81

DEBRBE IR EFHE 2 S BMEAE -

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

Inter-segment revenue is charged at amounts agreed by

both parties.
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Wik D HEFR (&) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEER (F) Segment information (continued)
7B xR A2 R Reconciliation of segment revenue and results
—E-—F —ECEH
2021 2020
THET TERT
HK$/000 HK$'000
i &= Revenue
28z AW Total segment revenue 151,285 235,847
7 50 R U a2 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (24,002) (44,243)
127,283 191,604
DEPEE Segment loss (28,676) (72,710)
RAOEYME  MENRFZREINE  Unallocated depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (11,730) (9,135)
ROGMERAEEERE Unallocated depreciation of right-of-use
assets (293) (2,344)
RKOBWIE  BER Unallocated impairment losses on property,
REREBE  MERED plant and equipment, net of reversal (1,837) (3,567)
KoBFEREEERERE Unallocated impairment losses on
B E) right-of-use assets, net of reversal (5,785) -
=R N Other unallocated expenses (25,149) (35,753)
HWA R EM R EE Other income and other gains and losses 44,392 4,375
REMEAREEHZ Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of
W (BE) investment properties 14,319 (25,425)
fl & BY AR Finance costs (4,838) (4,824)
MR AT ET 18 Loss before taxation (19,597) (149,383)
B E Y Geographic information

TREINBRHADAEEIIARATE RS 5 Ri)E
SERENE -VE- - BEREBURFERE
EE((BErRDEE]) 2ihBNEER - &
FrHBUBNRERNERZNEERE 18
EFRBEE 2 HIBNEDNRIEEE 2SR
B (MBRENEURYE BERSRE) RE
B (WEEAEEE) MEE -

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers; and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use
assets ("specified non-current assets"). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset in the case of investment properties
and property, plant and equipment, and the location of

operations in the case of right-of-use assets.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

DEBE R (. Segment information (continued)
EEF () Geographic information (continued)
HREFEF WS EEXRBDEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—EZ—-F —E-EF —2=—F —E-EF
2021 2020 2021 2020
FTHET FTER THERT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5B Hong Kong 55,305 97,788 493,089 478,367
R FY Macau 14,720 34,437 5,676 7,168
H A 3 Mainland China 40,616 35,784 212,229 169,356
=) Taiwan 14,174 14,723 = 237
03K Singapore 2,468 8,872 = =
71,978 93,816 217,905 176,761
127,283 191,604 710,994 655,128
FHTEEFZEH Information about major customers

BE_ZT_—FR-E-_FF=A=+—HIt
FE HMERBE-IIRABEFZWRLAER
Uz 4828 2 10%3k A | o
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During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, there
was no single external customer that contributed 10% or

more of the Group's total revenue.
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6. HAWA 6. OTHER INCOME
—E_— —E-EF
2021 2020
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREYEHES WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 4,566 4,928
RITERZFEWRA Interest income from bank deposits 124 33
PR 7 & WA Service fee income 696 1,061
2019BMFSHHEB 2HELER Covid-19 related rent concessions 19,677 =
B 8 BE (B =E) Government grants (Note) 7,310 -
Hity Others 232 1,083
32,605 7,105
Mzt : RAREE > REEF2019BRESHIEE Note: During the current year, the Group recognised government
EERMF®EEL7,310,0008 T ' & grants of HK$7,310,000 in respect of Covid-19 related
4,667,000/ 7t . 1,200,00078 JT B2 & 78 B subsidies, of which HK$4,667,000 and HK$1,200,000
iRENARREFERZEXEYESR relates to Employment Support Scheme and Retail Sector
B o Subsidy Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government.
7. HtnmRER 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
—®-- e
2021 2020
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RELKLEESH 2 KE Gain on early termination of lease contracts 9,280 431
B 5 Ui (B518) F 48 Exchange gain (loss), net 2,427 (2,038)
HEWE BMERRME2WKE  Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and
(E518) equipment 80 (1,123)
11,787 (2,730)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

8. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT

= -
2021 2020
FTHET THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
KRB -FEBNEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FEERE Provision for the year - _
BREFEBERE Over-provision in respect of prior years = 30
- 30
FEBIE-FBRES Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
RNEEEE Provision for the year (259) (571)
EEFRER Deferred tax (3,349) 3,458
EH (X)) EE Income tax (expense) credit (3,608) 2,917
BRETBMRFFNEHEFE  SEREEE Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
BEE2,000,00078 JT HE R A5 328.2 5% HI T R 1 Profits tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of a qualifying
B MAEB2,000,00078 T HY=EF AR 16.5%H group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
BEER - FHEMAFFEREHENEE HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
ERBMNBEERI65%NFE —HEHB - & entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
ERR MAHFNESHEHNEBEREMIRE regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
BUHERSHBRRMSAFERK Bt - RZ The Directors consider the amount involved upon
MEFE  EEBREXBHNNBEQRAERE implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
st ERBOEFIIZ16.5%THEBREH o insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, Hong Kong Profits Tax for subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong is calculated at 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=1

E2-F

FEH (X)) R (&
RIBEFRECERERE ([LEREH ) R
Fr8RUEBRRIZS - REIAKE A SR EE
FENBER25% °

RS R BT RS 32,0002 T (HHE R
31,0005 Jt) 1B 1K 74300,00032 F9 T (18 & ®
291,000/ 70) M ERBLUW AR N F3%ZE9%M
PEREHM MESSEIZREERE12%
WP -BE_ETE-_—FR-_Z-_ZF=A
ET-HLEFE  BRMABFETHIBEBR
GiEiE o FERBIURA K % 5188 5600,00008 3
7t (18 & 7582,0007% 7t) » 8 600,000 F3
7 (FE 582,000 7T ) HY &R B % 7l Bl 2 &
ERE12%MF ©

REMFEER (BREAERMMK) EE2
RIEDZREBEAEREZRITRETE - RE
E-E-_—F=ZA=+—-HLEFE UREE
RIFMBEZHMB AR ZBERABED B H17%
(ZZ2=FF 1 17%) R17% (ZB=FF !
17%) °

MRIFEBFRARE  SRREEERETEBRF
BAt 2 ELEE—EZLF T A=+ —
HRBEEZGEANELZDIKIET0%H EH MR
FEMB - ARAAEBRAENELEIHE BT
MRLZzHEBAREEZEHES » METELTE
B EFATE R Z BB ER5% c ESRH
REERZEA RERDIRZERF - TR
MO IKZEREBEHEN 2BIBERIELRS
#HEES8,200,0008B L (Z &= F F :
8,305,000/ JT) °

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT (continued)
Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate

of Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Macau Complementary Tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income above
MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but below
MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and thereafter at
a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 31 March 2021
and 2020, a special complementary tax incentive was
provided to the effect that the tax free income threshold
was MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) with profit
above MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) being

taxed at a fixed rate of 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions including Taiwan and
Singapore is calculated at the rate prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
applicable tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan
and Singapore are 17% (2020: 17%) and 17% (2020: 17%)

respectively.

The Group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%
(unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of profits
generated after 31 December 2007 from the Group’s
foreign-invested enterprises in Mainland China. As all of
the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly and
wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a
reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities of HK$8,200,000
(2020: HK$8,305,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits since, in the opinion of the Directors,
these earnings are not intended to be distributed in the

foreseeable future.
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FRAEH (A ERTEGSERREM
PHWSERABENRBABEEROT :

8. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT (continued)

The income tax (expense) credit for the year can be

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

—E_— —ECEF
2021 2020
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MR BB 18 Loss before taxation (19,597) (149,383)
BREHBERBRERERS Notional tax at tax rates applicable to losses
BENEARE in the tax jurisdictions concerned
AEZERBE 3,936 25,661
AR H 2 B2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (304) (1,210)
BAGHBA 2B BT E Tax effect of non-taxable income 2,085 9
KERFTEHREE2BIEEE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (7,585) (17,968)
FREHHMEHERZ Tax effect of tax losses utilised during the year
s E 4,314 381
AEATNREHUZEZ Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
iR g not recognised (6,054) (4,172)
BREEEBERE Overprovision in respect of prior years - 30
HAth Others = 99
(3,608) 2,917
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=1

E2-F

FRER

FREBSMER (FFA) THRR

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging (crediting):

—e--% -EB-TF
2021 2020
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETIRA Staff costs
EE<E (FfFsE10) Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 5,611 8,409
Hih & TR A Other staff costs
¥ FMRHEMBER Salaries, wages and other benefits 51,449 63,954
RE MR EIER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 2,951 4,368
BTRARE Total staff costs 60,011 76,731
KB AT B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,300 1,300
¥ -HBERRBINE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12,180 16,865
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 38,907 58,275
W%  BERREZHMEEE  Impairment losses on property, plant and
GTADHEREERIUR equipment (included in distribution and
THRHEMEEFRZR) selling expenses and administrative and
other operating expenses) 3,434 7,525
FREEEZRERRE Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
(FTADEREERSIUR (included in distribution and selling
THRHEMEEFRZR) expenses and administrative and other
operating expenses) 17,973 43,623
EWERR 2 REEE Impairment losses on trade receivables = 81
REVEZHERARERE Rental income from investment properties
X Hi311,000% 7T less direct outgoings of HK$311,000
(ZEZZ% : 260,000/ T) (2020: HK$260,000) (4,255) (4,668)
BRAEBI 2FEERA Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 40,378 44,571
RITEERER Interests on bank borrowings 1,149 728
HEBEZFE Interests on lease liabilities 3,689 4,096

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (continued)

BRAARI L FERABEETRARTEM Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes
B827,571,000/8 L (ZE=FFF : 13,600,000 HK$7,571,000 (2020: HK$13,600,000) relating to staff
BIT)  BERIEL AR ZER AT costs and depreciation, which amount is also included in
BT BBES the respective total amounts disclosed separately in this

note for each of these expenses.

10. BSERIBAHAEHS 10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
AAFREE (BREIETHAR) 2EMAH The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors of
FEAMESEIMT : the Company, including the chief executive, are as follows:

BE o ORRE
RENERN 37N
Salaries, BT
allowances MEEA Retirement
#8€  and benefits  Discretionary scheme @t
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TET TET TR TR TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE-Z-—%=H For the year ended
=t—-RLEE 31 March 2021
HITEE Executive directors
REA (TREED  Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) - 3,937 - 18 3,955
#%EE ([%aL]) Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
(“Ms. Tsui”) - 2,369 - 18 2,387
R2 & Chan Sze Chun - 445 - 18 463
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REZ Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - - - 90
PN Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - - - 90
MR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - - - 90
270 6,751 - 54 7,075

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]

129



Aok 7 S 25 R M i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

10. EERIFETHRAEME (&) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
FEN 2R
RENEF BRI
Salaries, STEIMM
allowances M1EFA Retirement
e and benefits  Discretionary scheme =t
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TERT TERT TERT TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BZ-Z-Z%=H For the year ended
=t-HLEEE 31 March 2020

HITEE Executive directors

BREE Mr. Chan = 5,499 = 18 5,517
Rt Ms. Tsui = 3,661 = 18 3,679
R % Chan Sze Chun = 773 = 18 791

BUFHTEZE  Independent non-executive

directors
RE% Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - - - 90
R G Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - - - 90
= Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - = = 90

270 9,933 - 54 10,257
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

10. EERFTETHRAEMNE (& 10. DIRECTORS’” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

e RUREYEANEREOESEHZEE
Y2 HERE1,464,0008 T (ZE-8F :
1,848,000/ 7T ) °

RTESCHBRANESENEH Z2XER
BE LRESSHE -

REETAADBZEETHALR » KA LM
FREsHEC BRREREETHRAERRHE
BRI 2B E -

EXFRRHTEESHEERARENEELRLQT
EASEEHREARE ML -

EXFRBYFHTEScMEERRELE
ESRHERB2ME -

RMEFERN  AEBHBEXAMEFEEHF
AIBBERE MR A B AR < 3£ Bt
BEE - -FR HITESMELE BLLREK
BEELECHERSEZETHE  €EHRAH
1,980,000/ T (ZZ=F4F : 211,000 T) *
1,080,000/ T (ZE=FF : 115,000 7T) &
360,000 T (ZZE=FF : 38,0008 7T) ° 7£
MEFER  LEEFHITESRE MM
o

(continued)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of HK$1,464,000 (2020: HK$1,848,000) which
represents the market rental value of own properties

provided to Directors.

The discretionary bonuses to the Directors are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by

the board of directors.

Mr. Chan is also the chief executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the independent non-executive

directors shown above were for their services as Directors.

During both years, no emoluments was paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. During the
year, the executive directors, Mr. Chan, Ms. Tsui and
Mr. Chan Sze Chun have waived certain of their
emoluments amounted to HK$1,980,000 (2020:
HK$211,000), HK$1,080,000 (2020: HK$115,000) and
HK$360,000 (2020: HK$38,000) respectively. None of the
independent non-executive directors has waived any

emoluments in both years.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

11. AEREHE AL
FEfUBEMEALTH MU(ZZE=ZF W
) EB2HMEERMIF10ELIRE - H8R=
N(ZEZEF =) AT ZBSLFENT :

11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2020: two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

the other three (2020: three) individuals are as follows:

—E_— —E-EF
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

He  EHREMEYERN Salaries, allowances and
other benefits in kind 4,364 4,737
15 1E 4L Discretionary bonuses 200 200
EBARFTEIHE R Retirement scheme contributions 140 146
4,704 5,083

ZEU(CEIERF  ZU)MEES AT ZH
EETHEER :

The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

AH
Number of individuals
= —TCFF
2021 2020
1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000/ 7t HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001/ 7t —2,000,0008 7t HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2 2

12. RE
REBE-_ZE-_—FR-Z-ZFF=A=+-—H
I FEHRE - B R|EARDEEBRRFIRA S
BREMRE  RERSHREY FAEIREE
AIRE °

132 Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% & [ B 48 1 45 B 2 &)

12. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been

proposed since the end of the reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

13. BRER 13. LOSS PER SHARE
ARNREEABIEERERSEENREUTH The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
BEE the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
e Loss

—EB=-—-F —E-E2HE
2021 2020
THET FTHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
AU EEREREEZ Loss for the year for the purposes of
EREE calculating basic loss per share (22,751) (146,694)
R EE Number of shares
= —E-FF
2021 2020
TR TR
000 ‘000
ALUGTEERELREE 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
LB R INAE T the purpose of calculating basic loss per share 287,930 287,930

R AR 2 B A R 8 F E 3 SR B EE D 2
ZERG AU EZIERBEESE -

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

Diluted loss per share is

years.
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not presented as the Company

does not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for both
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

14. YE -BERREURREYE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
BB
KB BHR
BB BAEER
KRR kAE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, VE 1
buildings computer RN
held for I#£E  and office iR Sub-total
oWn Use R#&H  equipment £ of property, RENE
carried at Plant and and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment @it
fair value machinery vehicles  improvements equipment properties Total

TER TEL TR TERL TR TR Tk
HK$000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$000 HK$/000 HK$000 HK$000

HAGfE: Cost or valuation:
RZE-NEMA-A At 1 April 2019 390,712 3,634 22,329 41,812 458,687 282,725 741,412
EifE Exchange adjustments (26) (105) (191) (101) (423) 25 (398)
BE Additions - 3 261 7,100 7,364 - 7,364
HE /s Disposals/write-off - (524) (42) (13,227) (13,793) - (13,793)
HIBREENERZRENE  Transfer from land and buildings to
investment properties (2,273) - - - (2,273) 2273 -
EffE4 Deficit on revaluation (9,952) - - - (9,952) - (9,952)
W EEHERRTE Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation (9,793) - - - (9,793) - (9,793)
REHZZEBADAEHDY  Decrease in fair value recognised
in profit or loss = = = = = (25,425) (25,425)
RZZZZEMA-A At 1 April 2020 368,668 3,208 22,357 35,584 429,817 259,598 689,415
Ex@% Exchange adjustments 1,044 89 214 503 2,650 552 3,202
BE Additions - 5 310 3,980 4,295 11,025 15,320
HE /W Disposals/wite-off = 2,051) (2,602) (10,288) (14,941) = (14,941)
BIBREENERZRENE  Transfer from land and buildings to
investment properties (12,289) - - - (12,289) 12,289 =
BB Surplus on revaluation 30,400 - - - 30,400 - 30,400
W EEHERGRE Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation (11,595) = = - (11,595) = (11,595)
REEZERADAERM Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss - - - - - 14,319 14,319
RZE=-F=f=1-H At 31 March 2021 377,028 1,251 20,279 29,779 428,337 297,783 726,120
fix: Representing;
A Cost = 1,251 20,279 29,779 51,309 - 51,309
i Valuation 377,028 - - - 377,028 297,783 674,811

377,028 1,251 20,279 29,779 428,337 297,783 726,120
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

Bl B
5B BHR
AR ESIR BAERE
KERRZ kAE
IHREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, nE HE
buildings computer FES TN
held for I££E  and office LS Sub-total
oWn use R#&H  equipment B of property, RENE
carried at Plant and and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment @it
fair value machinery vehicles  improvements ~ equipment properties Total
TET THT THT ThT THT THT ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HERAE: Depreciation and impairment:
R=E-NEMA-A At 1 April 2019 - 3,148 19,600 33,854 56,602 - 56,602
EiBE Exchange adjustments - (89) (166) (194) (449) - (449)
REERE Charge for the year 9,793 51 811 6,210 16,865 = 16,865
RERZEEDHERSE Impairment losses recognised
GEL) in profit or loss (note 9) - 621 2,144 4,760 7,525 - 7525
HE /W Disposalshurite-off - (523) (32 (12,103) (12,660) 5 (12,660)
EfiRHE Elimination on revaluation 9,793) - - - (9,793) - 9,793)
RZEZEEQRA-A At 1 April 2020 - 3,208 22,357 32,525 58,090 - 58,090
ER@E Exchange adjustments = 89 172 1,555 1,816 = 1,816
REERE Charge for the year 11,595 = 03 522 12,180 - 12,180
RBEZERIHEFE Impairment losses recognised
(Hizt9) in profit or loss (note 9) - 5 289 3,140 3,434 = 3,434
HE /i Disposalshwrite-off = (2,051) (2,602) (10,288) (14,941) - (14,941)
BEEYHE Elimination on revaluation (11,595) = = = (11,595) = (11,595)
R=B--f§=f=+-H At 31 March 2021 - 1,251 20,279 27 454 48,984 - 48,984
REFE: Net book value:
R=B--£=f=+-H At 31 March 2021 377,028 - - 2,325 379,353 297,783 677,136
WZZ-EE=A=1-8  At31March2020 368,668 - - 3,039 371,727 259,598 631,325
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=1

BF

14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (A)

R-ZZB-Z-—F=ZA=+—-—H HKEHEHA
155,300,0005& 7T (ZZ = : 52,100,000/%
) 2t REEYERBTEEERKF (R
MfzE22) o

AZETZ—F > E{H12,289,0008 T (=ZE=
T 12,273,0008 ) 2 L REEYERY
(ARNEREREREME  UREFEAH
TER EMYERBISERER REERE
BERRFE -

E-Z=—F BREBRBEBEMNEBRRE
EEEEMAMBINETHREEEEN(ZF
—EF  EBEBREBRIEL) REEHE

BAREHBEYE BERZREIESHME X
It EEEFMEREYE  BERRBEZITK
El&iE MZzEEEZREECHREREZ
A Y Bl & 582,325,000 T (ZEZZ F ¢
2,148,000/ 7T) ° F{EE1E3,434,0008 T (=
T -FF 1 7,525000/8 ) BERIEEER o 7
WESENET DREZSEEMBCREE
EENERAERRMEBEEIZS% (ZEZF:

13.5%) MAEH °

EEBWEZRAETE

REB-—FR-B-FF=ZA=+—H 'K
SEMEAAEDRBENEEL EEEE 2
BEREXYEGEMNTRABMITERAE
R-B-_-—FR-B-ZEF=A=+—-RET
ZEEREEMBEE - REEHEBUENLI R
B ARENSRTHEEREC RMEEMN
Wi E A ERTT R A R EE MR ARE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 March 2021, land and buildings with carrying
amounts of HK$155,300,000 (2020: HK$52,100,000) were
pledged against bank borrowings (see note 22).

In 2021, land and buildings to the value of HK$12,289,000
(2020: HK$2,273,000) was transferred to investment
properties upon a change in use of the properties as
evidenced by the end of owner occupation and the said
properties became held for capital appreciation and/or

rental purposes.

In 2021, certain cash-generating units, as identified based
on each retail store, of the Hong Kong operation and
outside Hong Kong operation (2020: Hong Kong operation
and outside Hong Kong operation) recorded losses which
indicate the relevant property, plant and equipment might
have been impaired. As a result, the Directors reviewed the
recoverable amount of the relevant property, plant and
equipment and the carrying amount of such assets was
written down to their recoverable amount of HK$2,325,000
(2020: HK$2,148,000). An impairment loss of
HK$3,434,000 (2020: HK$7,525,000) was recognised in
profit or loss. The estimates of recoverable amount were
based on value in use of the cash-generating units to which
these assets belong at a discount rate of 13.5% (2020:
13.5%).

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

The fair value of the Group’s properties as at 31 March
2021 and 2020 were arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 by Centaline
Surveyors Limited, independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the
Group. In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group’s senior executive management has
discussion with the valuer on the appropriate valuation

techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.
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HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

14. V% BERREURREYE (& 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)
KEBYE A ARETE(F) Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties
(continued)

R|BERR  Z2ERENEREELABESRN

Details of the Group’s properties and information about the

ERFREHINMT ¢ fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
R-B=--—%
=ZA=+—-H
ZRRE
Fair value as
B4R at 31 March
Level 3 2021
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEMRAREE Recurring fair value measurement
REMHE Investment properties:
BE Hong Kong 157,352 157,352
R A Mainland China 140,431 140,431
BEERAZ L RESEY : Land and buildings held for own use:
B8 Hong Kong 318,047 318,047
HER i Mainland China 58,981 58,981
R=Z=FF
=A=t+—H
AN TR
Fair value as
F=RH at 31 March
Level 3 2020
FTHET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEMRAAETE Recurring fair value measurement
REWE Investment properties:
=B Hong Kong 154,709 154,709
i A it Mainland China 104,889 104,889
FEEBRZLHRESEY Land and buildings held for own use:
BB Hong Kong 310,889 310,889
R A b Mainland China 57,779 57,779
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HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (A)

KEBYE A RETE (F)

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

(continued)
BE-_2_—S=-A=1t—-RLFE  KBF During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no
ZEEANBASEL (Z2=22F 1 H) - transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: nil).
EXRTEE
BARE
HERZE Significant
Valuation unobservable g5
techniques inputs Range
REBZRENE-IX ERLEBE REENES -28. 1%512 2%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison B 288 (I E) (ZE=-ZEF:
— Industrial approach  Premium (discount) -32.7%Z11.1%)
on quality of the -28.1% to0 12.2%
buildings  (2020: -32.7% to 11.1%)
REBZREVNF-BF EELEBE MEEYES -5. 2%527 7%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison EH ZaE hE) (ZBE=FF:
— Commercial approach Premium (discount) -37.9%%£48.4%)
on quality of the -5.2% to 27.7%
buildings  (2020: -37.9% to 48.4%)
RABIR 2 REYFE-T% L ON- ¥ |47 ERfLR 3.0%
Investment properties in Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE=ZFF : 4.0%)
Mainland China - Industrial approach 3.0%
(2020: 4.0%)
RPBEAE 2 RENFE-BE LN (47 B E 3.9%
Investment properties in Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZBEZZF : 6.4%)
Mainland China - Commercial approach 3.9%
(2020: 6.4%)
RABERE 2 RENE-EE DON- .47 ERfx 9%§3 75%
Investment properties in Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZEZEE 1 4.0%)
Mainland China - Residential approach 1.9% to 3.75%
(2020: 4.0%)
R Rz ZENFE LT =8: 304973 MEENES -8.2%F12.4%
Investment properties in Direct comparison  {EH Z &8 (37:E) (=225  TEA)
Mainland China - Residential approach Premium (discount) -8.2% to 12.4%

138
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14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (A)

KEBYE A ARETE(F)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

ERFUBE

BAHE

HERE Significant
Valuation unobservable &[H
techniques inputs Range
REBSEERAZLHRESEY -TX BEELEBE PERNEE -28.1%%8.3%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison EH ZRE (TZE) (ZBE=ZF .
Hong Kong — Industrial approach Premium (discount) -32.7%%10.2%)
on quality of the —28.1% to 8.3%
buildings  (2020: -32.7% to 10.2%)
REBRGEERAZLIHRESEY -EE BEELEBE PERNEE 12.8%%32.1%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison EH 2R 1E () (ZB=EEF:
Hong Kong — Residential approach Premium (discount) -1.0%%27.2%)
on quality of the 12.8% to 32.1%
buildings (2020: -1.0% to 27.2%)
RPBEREEFERZT R EEY -BX ERLEBE HEEYEE -10.0%Z4.7%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison B 2 =18 (a8 (ZBE=F&:
Mainland China - Commercial approach Premium (discount) -13.2%%E-1.0%)
on quality of the -10.0% to 4.7%
buildings (2020: -13.2% to -1.0%)
RPBEREEFEERZLI R EEY - BB HEEYEE -3.3%Z64.1%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison EH 28R () (ZE=FF :
Mainland China — Residential approach Premium (discount) -5.0%%8.8%)

URBEBRFEABEEE Rz T REEY
ZAREDNSENBE®RETFLERNEER
BoZoRmSEEEEERE -

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

The fair value of land and buildings held for own use
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China is determined

on an open market value basis, by making reference to the

on quality of the
buildings

-3.3% to 64.1%
(2020: -5.0% to 8.8%)

comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality.
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=1

E2-F

14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

EEBWEZRAETE ()

RENMEZAARETNZZHBAMRETHFLR
HEERE  BARMSEEREE  H()ER
FHEMELEZHERBEEERBBARBESR
L EE -

HELBUEMER OGRERITE - NHERE
VBT HEENLER - BEMEZES » EE
TERS BERLIAEBHELA -

WAERCERERNERCRERRENH
RYEmEEHSER - HRARUREERVEM
EHAZE - AREHEBETSHESEEAREER
BE BEXAERAHEERR-

EABFERAC I REEYFEEZEGHE
£230,400,0008 T (ZZE - F  EHEE
9,952,000/ 7t) AE M2 H =R o i Ll
ZIFEB A2 £ i R EYIRE AR R 5t
EIE  RZEBE=—F=A=+—B2ZKHA
E# 567,978,0008 T (ZEZFF :
73,017,000/&87T) °

REVWELAABEEBFIES 214,319,000
BT (ZEZEHF  F1825,425,000/87T) ER

BEER -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties
(continued)

The fair value of investment properties is determined (i) on
an open market value basis, by making reference to the
comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality; or (ii) by
capitalising the current rent derived from the existing
tenancies with the provision for any revisionary income

potential.

The premium or discount used in direct comparison
approach is specific to the building compared to the recent
sales. Higher premium for higher quality buildings will

result in a higher fair value measurement.

The capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation
approach has been adjusted for the expected market rental
growth, occupancy rate and quality and location of the
building. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rental value and negatively

correlated to the capitalisation rate.

Revaluation surplus of HK$30,400,000 (2020: revaluation
loss of HK$9,952,000) arising from revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Had the above land and buildings
held for own use been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would
have been HK$67,978,000 (2020: HK$73,017,000) at 31
March 2021.

The gain arising from changes in fair value of investment

properties of HK$14,319,000 (2020: loss of
HK$25,425,000) is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

15. EREREEE 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HEWE HEWXE
-E€8E —-PAE
Leased Leased
properties — properties — et
retail shop office Total
FHET FTHER FHER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost:
RZZ-NAFHA—H At 1 April 2019 154,533 4,842 159,375
0B AR Exchange adjustment (1,507) (117) (1,624)
BE Additions 36,210 153 36,363
BEGETIEET Modification of lease term (7,326) (16) (7,342)
REAREBHEESY Early termination of lease
contracts (24,548) - (24,548)
R=Z-FFNA—H At 1 April 2020 157,362 4,862 162,224
Eija§ﬂ§§ Exchange adjustment 2,750 327 3,077
e Additions 43,859 6,342 50,201
HERZRIER Modification of lease term 15,112 = 15,112
T;EEMJJ:#HE\ =5y Early termination of lease
contracts (26,573) (4,756) (31,329)
HESHNER Expiration of lease contracts (8,931) = (8,931)
R=ZB=Z—F
=A _‘f' H At 31 March 2021 183,579 6,775 190,354
TERRE : Depreciation and impairment:
R-ZE-NFNA—H At 1 April 2019 53,697 752 54,449
B 50 9 & Exchange adjustment (812) (40) (852)
RKEERE Charge for the year 55,848 2,427 58,275
EMEE’IEEEE%WTEE?E Impairment losses recognised
(K$3E9) in profit or loss (note 9) 42,112 1,511 43,623
REALEESY Early termination of lease
contracts (17,074) - (17,074)
R-ZE-ZHEMA—H At 1 April 2020 133,771 4,650 138,421
EEFEJ@%% Exchange adjustment 1,374 81 1,455
REEHE Charge for the year 37,892 1,015 38,907
REZERIAMEEE Impairment losses recognised
(H$5E9) in profit or loss (note 9) 12,188 5,785 17,973
REALEESY Early termination of lease
contracts (26,573) (4,756) (31,329)
HESLYE® Expiration of lease contracts (8,931) = (8,931)
R=ZB=—F
=B=+-8 At 31 March 2021 149,721 6,775 156,496
BRERE Net carrying value:
R=Z=-—%
=A=+—8H At 31 March 2021 33,858 - 33,858
R-ZZ-FF
=B=+—H At 31 March 2020 23,591 212 23,803
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BF

15. FHEEE (i)

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

—B--F g e 33
2021 2020
THET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
SHIFA SRR (ZZE =25 . Expense relating to short-term leases (2020:
ARV BRERE BT KRS short-term leases and other leases with
B %165 B HEET 1218 A & lease terms end within 12 months of the
ERZEHEEREMESE) date of initial application of HKFRS 16) 2,354 22,205
RitEHEEERREEZ Variable lease payments not included in the
AEEEN measurement of lease liabilities 15,977 12,765
HEZHES R BB Total cash outflow for leases 65,954 87,663

RMEFE  AREREXBLEEARE X
B ZEF BELAEERBRLAZE - HES
WAL —FZ2RFWEEAH - BT IZRER
EEGE  UEERXERENERRRES - R
BN FT L T S 2 BAPR B - AR
EEAGHERSEESHN AT ZHR -

ZEFHES AEFECHERERBE TS
HEREME  RERHENETEILERR
HHRNBEENREFERERETE - 4D
RN RIRREE LRI o FRIBERTIER
SEEERTHESE R FEARL - &

BRHFMEEEEERRA BE-_T=—
¢ B=t—-HAR=Z=2F=A=t—HIL
FE BN/ BAHEEEEAZEERTEE
ERESHEMT ¢

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

For both years, the Group leases factory buildings, retail
shops, department store counters and offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which

the contract is enforceable.

Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payment that are based
on certain percentage of sales and minimum annual lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term. Some variable
payment terms include cap clauses. The payment terms are
common in retail shops in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland
China, Taiwan and Singapore where the Group operates.
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid/
payable to relevant lessors for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

15. BEREEE (&) 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
BE-_ZS_—-=A=+—HLEE For the year ended 31 March 2021
& %E 14 CE-ShEN HRBHE
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
FTHERT FHET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WHEASHEENTZ Retail shops without variable
Z2EE lease payments 35,299 - 35,299
REASHEHENRZ Retail shops with variable
ZEE lease payments 12,291 15,977 28,268
47,590 15,977 63,567
BE-_ZE-ZHF=F=1+—HLEE For the year ended 31 March 2020
ERENEA A T RABH
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
FTER FTER FTHER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WEASHERNRZ Retail shops without variable
ZER lease payments 67,363 - 67,363
REUSHENHRZ Retail shops with variable lease
FEE ayments 5,346 12,765 18,111
pay
72,709 12,765 85,474
FEAABNRGRNER BT ERHERR The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
ENEEERMEENEERAETRS - HHX is that higher rental costs are incurred by retail shops with
REFASEEH XM TE/EHERM LA higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
BERE - continue to represent a similar proportion of retail shops

sales in future years.
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15. FHEEE (i)

HEER
BE-Z-—H=ZA=1+—HLEE 2B
EEHRBEQARASHENEEAZBRIZ12
&l B AR A 10%ZE100%M & 5 A & B R4
HEER °

H2019BRASHEBHNEERREENZ
ZHSREHETBMBHRELAE16.46B5
MBI > MAEEEARTRE R ETT
HEREZBHRABHNBEEET c HREHBEAR
HEAAEERNER19,677,000/8 7T » HAEE
RSN ERIRBETEHELR -

BB 5T AR
HR2019BRBEEREERAEEREEH
REAXE AEEEEERAFERETR -
WHEEWMEURIE - BERRB2ATHRE
& HETRERTME

BFERESELBENARESEIRESEHAEE
EMEE ZEFRARESAREREN  EEE
BLEREREEEE  REZRREELES
R HEERRNIMERE  AIR=F=—F
A=+ -—BHMBRHAEREERI35%(ZF=
Z135%)REE - FREBEFES —EBEZE
ZREBHEEENZE  HRBESHESELEEN
BEXRAUREEBHMSERNENME
TE o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2021, lessors of various
retail stores and department store counters provided rent
concessions to the Group through rent reductions ranging

from 10% to 100% over 1 to 12 months.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions in HKFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient not
to assess whether the changes constitute lease
modifications. The effects on changes in lease payments
due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant
leases of HK$19,677,000 were recognised as negative

variable lease payments.

Impairment assessment

Due to Covid-19 pandemic and adverse performance of the
Group’s retail operation, the management of the Group
concluded there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts

of leased properties and property, plant and equipment.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating units has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering the remaining lease term of each cash-generating
unit with a pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% (2020: 13.5%) as
at 31 March 2021. Another key assumption for the value in
use calculated is the budgeted gross margin, which is
determined based on each cash-generating units’ past
performance and management expectations for the market

development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

WAE R (4F) Impairment assessment (continued)

REFHER  AEEEEERAETHREE Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
EENHAIRESEERAELREE - REHAE Group determined that the recoverable amounts of certain
BE  CHREEVMEUARDE BERRE cash-generating units are lower than the carrying amounts.
ZEREE S BT E17,973,000/8 T (=& Based on the value in use calculation, an impairment of
ZZF 143,623,000/ 7t) &3,434,0007%8 T HK$17,973,000 (2020: HK$43,623,000) and HK$3,434,000

ZEZEHF 1 7,525,00087T) ©

(2020: HK$7,525,000) has been recognised against the
carrying amounts of leased properties and property, plant

and equipment respectively.

16. ENES 16. DEPOSITS PAID
—E-— —E-EFE
2021 2020
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HeRHEMERS Rental and other deposits 26,395 30,630
WEEM* - BERREZ Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
ENRE plant and equipment 532 =
WBRENEZENRE Deposit paid for acquisition of investment
(Ht=E) properties (Note) - 11,691
26,927 42,321
B HEREMERE (FEA Less: Rental and other deposits (included in
B U R I LA B LK trade and other receivables (note 18))
(FFEE18) ) (21,687) (17,607)
5,240 24,714
M B2 =—ZFE—hE=H=+—HILEEH Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, a deposit of
B &Re AR%10,522,000t (E RS RMB10,522,000 (equivalent to approximately
12,094,00058 Jt) B F1E X 4 W BBz 1A = HK$12,094,000) was paid as full consideration for
BAthzEEREEMAZ2EZRE - BE acquisition of a unit in a commercial building situated in
HEENEBE-_E-_—F=B=+—H1t Mainland China. The amount was transferred to investment
FEAEYEERBERNEHEENTAEER properties upon the property developer delivered said unit
BHEBEZIREYE - to the Group during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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17. & 17. INVENTORIES

—EB=-—-F —E-EHE
2021 2020
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREs Raw materials 1,066 1,519
EEG Work in progress 788 328
B m Finished goods 37,416 53,015
39,270 54,862

18. FEURBRFN N H b fE WL =h 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—8=-% —E-®5
2021 2020
THET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE WL BR X Trade receivables 8,147 6,527
W EEEERE Less: Allowance for credit losses = (81)
8,147 6,446
HeRkHMZEE - RE Rental and other deposits — current 21,687 17,607
FE T FRIE Prepayment 1,708 1,991
H th & Ut FX Other receivables 1,199 1,161
32,741 27,205
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18. AR R H 1t WK ()
RI|ERR  REZAPFELNREBERE
ZBEWIRARRBE DT WT ¢

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

—EB=-—-F i St 32

2021 2020

FERT FTER

HK$’000 HK$’000

308 & Within 30 days 6,796 4,613
31HZ90H 31 to 90 days 1,104 920
91H=180H 91 to 180 days B 12
#i8180H Over 180 days 244 901
8,147 6,446

FEWBR TR 3 R B BRI 3090 H BIH - "%
BEERXZE - THIFEHNME30 -

RZB-—F=A=+—H st AXEEEK
IR AR A HARMAE407,0008 T (= =%
% 11,293,000 5t) ZEWERR - BEKER
HREQHEEE - REBESRES » 247,000
BT (ZZEZZF 1 903,000/ ) EBEI90R
UL EHRESRAEZEHFFELR
B HERRREERTHEY  REBEER
MRATZEKE  FEEWEFIREBEY - K
SETEMRZEESRTEEMERAR -

BRERERREMERR ZBERGFER
FAKIEE30 ©

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy

are set out in note 30.

As at 31 March 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$407,000 (2020: HK$1,293,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$247,000 (2020: HK$903,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as
the Directors are of the opinion that the balances are still
considered fully recoverable due to long-term/on-going
relationship and good repayment record from these
counterparties. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other

receivables are set out in note 30.
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HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

19. BITEBEHRS 19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
—e--& —s-EE
2021 2020
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHRAR=EAR Deposits with banks within three months to
BH 2 RITHER maturity when placed _ 3,000
RITERRRE Cash at bank and in hand 17,567 28,829
RERE MR R R BT Bank balances and cash in the consolidated
EHRREASURRGSE statement of financial position and cash
ReRER2AER and cash equivalents in the consolidated
REEEY statement of cash flows 17,567 31,829
BRERTAESZBENGFERHARKE30 - Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set
out in note 30.
20. ENEFEEMENT 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—E--5 —B-Ef
2021 2020
THERT THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE A BR X Trade payables 5,690 8,013
gliRE Deposit received 2,960 2,935
FEstE R Accrued charges 16,130 26,026
B IR IR R FRIR Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder 1,800 1,800
HAib AR Other payables 4,920 4,180
31,500 42,954
FE{tIEIE R IR R SR IE B MK IR« 4 B R N EE The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is
TEZEHE o unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

DA ¢ trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—E_—— —E-EE
2021 2020
FTHET THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
308 Within 30 days 2,461 4,569
31BZ£90H 31 to 90 days 156 385
#8990 H Over 90 days 3,073 3,059
5,690 8,013
21. HEAE 21. LEASE LIABILITIES
—E_-— —E_EF
2021 2020
THET FTHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
EAEEEE: Lease liabilities payable:
—FR Within one year 61,467 61,593
BBE-FETBEBMF Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years 15,532 25,517
BBEMEEREBLE Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years 4,388 1,550
81,387 88,660
BRBEBERRERI2EA  Less: Amount due for settlement within
RERZEHE 12 months shown under current
liabilities (61,467) (61,593)
ERBEBEMTRI2ERE Amount due for settlement after 12 months
BRNzEH shown under non-current liabilities 19,920 27,067

Annual Report 2021 44 #t Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]

149



Aok 7 S 25 R M i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

22. & 22. BORROWINGS
—B--F —E-EHE
2021 2020
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEX Bank overdrafts 2,798 =
FREBEBEER Trust receipt loans 4,402 3,170
BHER Term loans 5,543 5,910
HitEHRTHEE Other short-term bank borrowings 40,800 25,000
53,543 34,080
FrE LMRTEEAEEME Al the above bank borrowings were secured
AR TSIHREE : and repayable as follows:
BEREREEBEMKRREZETI  The carrying amounts of bank loans that
HREBEZRITERZ contain a repayment on demand clause but
IRMEE (MY&E) : repayable (Note):
—FR Within one year 48,765 28,751
—FREWMFR After 1 year but within 2 years 4,778 581
MEREREFER After 2 years but within 5 years — 4,748
53,543 34,080
Mz ENRDREERGEFSEEERAN Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
FRst&E  WEAAEMREREERRZ dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
24 of any repayment on demand clause.
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B2 - SHBHRWE0 - RZFBEZ—F=
A=+t—-H UEERABEBEFRITEEZ
LHE(ZEZZF  HE) -
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E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

22. BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 March 2021, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by legal charges over land and buildings held for
own use and investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$155,300,000 (2020: HK$52,100,000)
and guaranteed by the Company.

The above variable-rate bank borrowings are subject to the
fulfilment of certain covenants relating to the financial
position ratios of a Company’s subsidiary and the Group.
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui shall remain as the Directors and
the largest shareholder of the Company. If the Group were
to breach the covenants the above secured bank
borrowings would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 30. As at 31 March 2021, none of the
covenants relating to the secured bank borrowings had
been breached (2020: nil).
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23. BEFFEHR (EE)RE 23. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
RAFELEFEUBERRKRER ZIELEFREH The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities

(BE)BEZENBIREBREHNT :

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the year are as follows:

TESRAE
TESHE
Depreciation AER fiEhfge  WEARZ
in excess of HEiEA HAEE ARNE  RDREA
the related EffNE Unrealised Write- Future  Undistributed
depreciation ~ Revaluation profits on down of benefit of profit of @t
allowances  of properties inventories inventories tax losses subsidiaries Total
ThT Thn TR TEn TiEn TiEn ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=E-NEMA-R At 1 April 2019 (6,487) 112,843 (2,196) (350) (1,794) 234 102,250
BRRGIA) IR (Credited) charged to profit or loss (1,374) (3,393) (247) (4 1,794 (234) (3,458)
R A Credited to reserves - (1,403) - = - - (1,40
RZB-ZF=A=1+-AR  At31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020
ZE-TENA-H (7,861) 108,045 (2,443) (354) = = 97,387
B (0 H1 (Credited) charged to profitor loss (1312 3,219 1332 110 - - 3,349
A Credited to reserves - 6,581 - - : ; 6,581
WZBZ-£ZF=+-R  At31 March2021 9,173) 117,845 (1,111) (244) - - 107,317
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E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

. BEEFREHR(EE) BB (& 23. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued)
—EB-—F i Sk 32
2021 2020
THET FTHEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
RiZEHMBEMRRERERZ Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
ELERBHERFH consolidated statement of financial
position (351) (566)
NGB BRRRER 2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
RIEFMEHREEFHE consolidated statement of financial
position 107,668 97,953
107,317 97,387

RERFESHEBEATEELEFEBEERZE
B % =FRFEH27IE6,939,0008 T (2=
Z5 111,080,000 T) - IHELFIEFER
ZBERZAFAERZKIE44,864,000/8 7T (=
T T 152,540,000 ) RATEEEFHIEE
ERZERZ T FREMRZFHIAS5521,000/8 T
—ZE-FF :5,89500087T) - REBEAHRK
R > x%E284,319,0008 T (ZEZFF :
249,570,0007% 7t ) It & & w &Y o

R-BE-—F=A=+—H xEEHRFERAE
EEURYME BERZEBEZRES
40,946,000/ 7T (= = : 24,880,000/
JU) AR E R ERE c HA T AT BB R B
AR AR EREEERNZA &R
FHREREZRBEIAELEMEHEE -

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
HK$6,939,000 (2020: HK$11,080,000) which can be
carried forward up to three years from the year in which
the loss was incurred, an amount of HK$44,864,000 (2020:
HK$52,540,000) which can be carried forward up to five
years from the year in which the loss was incurred and an
amount of HK$5,521,000 (2020: HK$5,895,000) which can
be carried forward up to ten years from the year in which
the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
HK$284,319,000 (2020: HK$249,570,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has deductible temporary
differences in relation to impairment of right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment of HK$40,946,000
(2020: HK$24,880,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such temporary difference as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
24. BA 24. SHARE CAPITAL
EERBBITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—g--% —Bo%E
2021 2020
RO HA Bt 8 B
Number S8 Number &5
of shares Amount of shares Amount
TR TET TR TER
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
EIE Authorised:
BREE.01ETZ Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
LER 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
ERTRBE: Issued and fully paid:
REDRRER At beginning of the year and
at end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880
EEREEABEERTBERZRE  BfE The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
AAREZLEBRAE-—ZERER - TEER dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to

BREXRBAzRGEEZRREES -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



25.

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

RANERNEE
REEREE B GRTIME QRS BIERG) B
REB(ERRBREA EERHBENERZ2EES
SR AREEE ((BEEFTE]) - BEE
AEAHBUZTEAETE 2 R EH/TCRAG
2 -RERESHE BEEIREERARES
BREWAZ%mZTEER  BESABEAR
A LEBRZ330,00058 7T  @EE &2 LTI ED
5 o

TEAZHBLARCSHEAMTBRFEEZ
REMRKTE - LEWBARARTENMIE
ERREFTzE TRELREZEIHER - #
RTENGERE o

REBEEXB CHWBARZEECRESH
HAaEY TRASIRAIEE 2 REMUGE -
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TRERZEARKERFR -
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25.

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in Mainland China participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local government.
These subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
certain prescribed rates of the relevant Mainland China
employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions to the

scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme
governed by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This
subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total salaries of the
participating employees who have chosen to participate in
the defined contribution scheme, the contribution deposited
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour

Insurance of Taiwan.
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26.

RGBT E (F)

RO BT 2 B iz & T 2 B2 i 37 bR IR AR
BehRAAEEHB ((HRIEE]) - HEL
AREIZRENEIHFM 2 ETEOLEAHR
RESHF . BEPRLOBESHL - EHRK
AXHEEREEANER - B2 REEMEN
% HEERARINIRAKER 2B EE—
BRI -

BREMES  ANEENEEMERESRIKE
2

MRz EMERERE - REGRNGE 2 HXK
RELERNREBEZAHR - AREKASHEZ
A IERM I E -

XERE

R-Z—HFT+A AEEREB—IMEL
A(EBHBAR] EERA  HEW—EH
REEFRBEFBENITHES S AR EM 2
BEMSHRAEBRILRER LR -EEXLE
EECENSRERCRETBMBLAR - 1
HERAERBEZENHRETZE A EE
XE BBMBARSEEBRELMARY
FERERE - AEBEEREIIREMFEERE
RERE  ESREENASEZIREMS
RER AR =ZE=—FR-_Z-FTF=H
=S+ —BUEREREBRTIREE -
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25.

26.

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by
the government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its
employees are required to contribute a certain percentage
of the employees’ payroll to the CPF. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-

retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Save as set out above, the Group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement
benefits of the employees. Contributions to the defined
contribution scheme are charged to profit or loss when
incurred. Details of the contribution scheme amount are

disclosed in Note 9.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In October 2015, a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong
(the “Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was
being sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in respect of alleged infringement of
copyright. The generally indorsed writ of summons was
subsequently served on the Hong Kong Subsidiary but the
statement of claim has not yet been served up to the date of
issue of these financial statements and the Hong Kong
Subsidiary continues to deny any liability in respect of the
above claim. An external counsel has been engaged to
defend the said claim and the Directors will continue to
seek advice from the Group’s external counsel. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this claim

as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

27. BARERE 27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
—E_— —ECEF
2021 2020
FTHET THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
RUBEBYE BERZE Capital expenditure contracted for but not
BRI NERREGE B #®EK provided for in the consolidated financial
BE2ERZH statements in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 1,397 180
28. KEHE 28. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
AEBEERHBEA The Group as lessor
HEZ2EYCRERESAREINT : Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:
—B--fF —E-FF
2021 2020
FHET FTHER
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR Within one year 4,236 4,563
E_F In the second year 3,639 1,316
BEE In the third year 3,369 =
FENF In the fourth year 3,461 _
EhHEF In the fifth year 3,537 _
hFE% After five years 5,754 -
23,996 5,879
FREAE-—RIOTH/Y—FELF - FAKE The leases typically run for an initial period of one to seven
HEYraasgaEs- years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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29.

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

During 2021, the Group’s strategy in monitoring its capital
structure, which was unchanged from 2020, was to
maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its liquidity
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the cash level,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends payable to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or

sell assets to increase the cash level.

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



Annual Report 2021 4 4E

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

30. €T H 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ERIAEZEH Categories of financial instruments
—EB-—f —E-%fF
2021 2020
THET FTHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets
1 58 B AN Amortised cost 53,308 70,884
cHAas Financial liabilities
B A Amortised cost 67,824 49,836

SREABEENEHRBE

FE RBEE  AEXREERRBIDEREH
X EFEBBRPEL - ARBEAAEZ
ZERBRAEEEEZZRAMAERAZH®
Bl EERRREMHLN T X -

=B m R R E TS
FEEzFERREIERBBKIRNK - AitE
W~ BERRITHELR - AEELESHEM
BRI AMEEERER  UWEEZEETH
EEMBENEERR -

AEEfHERRHFARERBTEEMSAE
BEZUBRBIANBAEERRREGEUE
MRARABZHECEASHEENIREE -

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with these

financial assets.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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BREHR  AEEEEERFSEENEHEHN
AREEEE - LR TWRE S EEH S
HURELES 18 o 255 B FE R BR SRR AR R ML A T
HEBYBREENESIARENEAREE
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

Retail sales are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit
card or credit card payments. In order to minimise the
credit risk in regard of balances with trade receivables
debtors, which mainly consist of credit card institutions,
department stores and malls, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group applies simplified approach on trade
receivables to assess for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9. To
measure ECL of trade receivables at amortised cost, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its counterparties
and they are assessed individually by reference to past
default experience, current past due exposure of the
debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current financial
position. The ECL rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted global economy which
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
the management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting

date.
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30.

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The credit risk on credit card receivables is limited because
the counterparties are bank/financial institutions with high
external credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. As at the end of the reporting period,
there is no credit-impaired balance of trade receivables
(2020: HK$81,000). In addition, the management of the
Group considers those not credit-impaired trade receivables
were collectible based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and adjusted for
forward-looking information. The Directors are of the
opinion that allowance for impairment on the remaining
trade receivables was insignificant and thus negligible to be

made.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables. As at 31 March 2021, 16% (2020: 29%) of
trade receivables is due from the Group’s largest
counterparty and 51% (2020: 60%) of trade receivables is
due from the five largest counterparties. The management
of the Group closely monitors the subsequent settlement by

the counterparties.
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—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs

For other receivables and rental and other deposits, the
Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of significant balances based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The Directors believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. Based on assessment by the
management of the Group, the ECL for other receivables

and deposits is insignificant.

The bank balances are placed in various authorised
financial institutions either with high credit ratings or good
financial background and the Directors consider the credit

risk of such authorised financial institutions is low.
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30. @M A (&) 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

TEEREENE KRB (E)

REE £ EE

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H  A5KEZR&HE
BRBEREEEL57,042,0008 T (ZF=
Z 4 124,850,000 7T) cBE-E-_—F=
A=+—BLEE FAEEELELEEESRE
#10,361,000% 7T (ZZFE=FF : 29,685,000
BT) RZBZ—F=A=1+—0 ~&H
BEZRERAESEEYETER17,567,000/8
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$57,042,000 (2020: HK$24,850,000). For the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Group generated operating cash
flows of approximately HK$10,361,000 (2020:
HK$29,685,000). As at 31 March 2021, the total cash and
cash equivalents of HK$17,567,000 (2020:
HK$31,829,000) were held by the Group and unutilised
bank facilities amounted to approximately HK$31,963,000
(2020: HK$23,101,000) were available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash outflows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

rates current at the end of the reporting period).

As the Directors do not expect the banks would exercise
the rights to demand repayment, the bank borrowings
subject to repayment on demand clause are expected to be
repayable based on the specific repayment terms. Hence,
for these bank borrowings, the following tables show the
contractual undiscounted cash outflows according to the
specific repayment terms and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate

effect.
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30. €@WMIA (&) 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREREENENRBEK (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
BB 2R (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
—E--F
2021
ARRFRR SR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
mE¥H -4 mEH
ME BmER  BEFR
Weighted ~ BEEA More than ~ More than
average R —E®  1yearbut 2 years hut REE
interest On Within ~ lessthan less than @it Carrying
rate demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount

TER TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RRERERBFIGRR Bank borrowings subject to

ZRITEE: repayment on demand
clauses:
RBEEFHES  Scheduled repayment 2.05% = 870 4,786 - 5,656 5,543
At REGEE Other short-terms borrowings 1.90% = 48,852 = - 48,852 48,000
BT RF K H RT3 Trade and other payables TEA N/A = 14,281 = = 14,281 14,281

- 64,003 4,786 - 68,789 67,824
REEFAZERX  Adjustments to disclose cash
BEEREREHRT  flows on bank borrowings
EFBEREZHE  based on lender's right to
s demand repayment 53,543 (49,722) (4,786) - (965) -
53,543 14,281 - - o784 67,824
HEEE Lease liabilities 3.46% - 62,483 15,949 4,483 82,915 81,387
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30. €@ T E (&) 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREAREENENRBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
BB 2 EE (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
- i
2020
ARRFREER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
e -Ef WK
= BRER EBEFR
Weighted ~ ZEBA More than ~ More than
average s 38 —&®  Tyearbut 2 years but REE
interest On Within -~ lessthan  less than @i Carrying
rate demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount

TiEx TiEx TR TR TER TER
HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000

ZREREEEIGAR Bank borrowings subject to

ZBATEE repayment on demand
clauses:
RBEERHES  Scheduled repayment 3.97% = 803 780 4,763 6,346 5,910
Hittmi{E & Other short-terms borrowings 3.52% - 28,494 - - 28,494 28,170
IR R £ MM Trade and other payables TEA NA - 15,756 = = 15,756 15,756

- 45,053 780 4,763 50,596 49,836
REERAZEREE Adjustments to disclose cash
BEERLBTHEE  flows on bank borrowings
HEHB2HERR  based on lender's right to

demand repayment 34,080 (29,297) (780) (4,763) (760) -

34080 15756 - S 49836 49,836

HEEE Lease liabilities 3.69% - 62,610 26,399 2,492 91,501 86,660
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=1

E2-F

30. @RI A (#F)

TEEREENENRBGE (E)

FEBNRSRENREMEEETERITHE

ERRITERBE - AEEBBRERRAKF
RAISEHEEANRSBEENEELEME
HEHAZRAR EEEERNESRIERGEE
MLHrRREBEERENSEHE -

FEBZFREBEIRRATZIEEEMAE -

(i) FIEL
TRAXEBNREHRTEESHEE

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Interest rate risk
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable rate bank borrowing and bank balances. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing the
potential impact arising from any interest rate movements
based on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and

variable rates and ensure they are within reasonable range.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its
variable rate financial liabilities.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of

REBEBEZRRERS: the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period:
= —E-FF
2021 2020
BRA = BRI
Effective THET Effective TER
interest rate $’000 interest rate $'000
BEFMZERMEE :  Fixed rate financial assets:
—-RITEH — Deposits with banks TEA N/A = 0.2% 3,000
FEREREFBAE :  Variable rate financial liabilities 1.56% 2.61%
—BE - Borrowings £2.42% £4.27%
1.56% to 2.61% to
2.42% 53,543 4.27% 34,080
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

FE @ bz (F)
(i) HBEDH

REZBE-Z—H=F=1+—0 ' &t AxRE
BRI HAN20BE 2 - MEMTA &
REFRBTE > AREEZBRREHER
KBBR8 N89,000/8 T (=&
—EEAEECBRBEERRATER
WA, AN57,00058 7T) °

E SR E 2 AT TR ER R R & B R i R
TEZEBMTIAREFRTE  FHEAE
MEBERER (R (RFTEE) REE
M ERNFREZEMBH - BRAE
B EFEARTBERRANRAETE
ZEMESETIR  BHEBINALEEZEE
EIAEMERNAAEBNERER - EEE
B HRFRZARAERREEFE
ZEK  SREINHEENXRARM S
WA RN -

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2021, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 20 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by HK$89,000 (2020: decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by HK$57,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s loss after tax (and (accumulated
losses) retained profits)) that is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
The analysis does not take into account exposure to
fair value interest rate risk arising from fixed rate
instruments as the Group does not hold any fixed rate
instruments which are measured at fair value in the
financial statements. In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not

reflect the exposure during the relevant years.

E#mpeE

& T R AR AR % FE A9 BR AR BA I SR AT 45 BR LAAR ES
LASNY MBS RHE - B
S B SN LR o ANEE ) B A 30 8 SN
BE - AW EEEEZIERE  YRFE
i Z B M E RN ERE o

TR

Annual Report 2021 4 4E

Currency risk

Certain trade receivables and payables and bank balances
are denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group

currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure

and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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30. €@ T E (&) 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREREENENRBEK (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
BEwmpg (&) Currency risk (continued)
(i) FrAEZEEER (i) Exposure to currency risk
AEEUIBTHENEBEEREGRN The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
REDRNREEDT : denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end

of the reporting periods are as follows:

&E &
Assets Liabilities
—B--F ZT-FTF ZB--F ZEF-FF
2021 2020 2021 2020
FTERT TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
& T Euros = - (1,605) (3,949)
BT Hong Kong dollars 74,763 73,862 (62,598) (59,933)
AR#E Renminbi 89 809 (1,176) (7,886)
(i) BEE D H (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRERAEERBESHRBAE AR The following table indicates the instantaneous change
e NEEZRNEBSHEHANER 2K in the Group’s loss after tax and (accumulated losses)
REBER (RFER) REER 2B retained profits that would arise if foreign exchange
FE CRREMEARSHEFTE - rates to which the group entities have significant

exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables

remained constant.
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B

30.

E-T-—F=F=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)~ Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Z8Z-f - St 22
2021 2020
E#  KEEERE  RHES R BHgEE  ZHFE
(T%) #m  EmnEd) (F3%) Em o EmED)
Increase (H) Increase Increase (B2) Increase
(decrease) Increase  (decrease) (decrease) Increase (decrease)
in foreign (decrease) in in foreign (decrease) in
exchange inloss accumulated exchange inloss accumulated
rates after tax losses rates after tax losses
TET THEL THET THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Euros 10% 134 134 10% 330 330
(10)% (134) (134) (10)% (330) (330)
BT Hong Kong dollars 5% (227) (227) 5% (291) (291)
(5)% 227 227 (5)% 291 291
AR® Renminbi 5% 45 45 5% 295 295
(5)% (45) (45) (5)% (295) (295)
EEERS  HRFRZEBRARERREESE In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
EzEE  SRED T ERIMERBRM S I unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
mAKRM - the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the relevant years.
AAE Fair values
BRBHERATTEZMESHIEYREEN - All financial instruments that are measured at amortised
E--FERZZFZEFZRA=T—HZARE cost are carried at amounts not materially different from
FTEEEREREZSEEIE- their fair values as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
FEFBEERS 31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

BE-—E-—S=A=1+—HLEE Kx&£H
MEEER LT HEZE -FREEE
50,201,00058 T (ZZE=FF : 36,363,000

36,363,000/ 7t) 2 Bl E R EMBRFER o
o AEERFRAMRBEEET 2 BIERAER
BEERHEEE®E15112,0008 T (ZE=F
&R IETERR7,342,0008 78) X 15,112,00058
T (ZEZEF : £ 1EHFR7,342,0008 ) °

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group entered
into new lease arrangements in respect of retail stores.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$50,201,000
(2020: HK$36,363,000) and HK$49,930,000 (2020:
HK$36,363,000) respectively were recognised at the
commencement of the leases. Furthermore, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$15,112,000 (2020: derecognised HK$7,342,000) and
HK$15,112,000 (2020: derecognised HK$7,342,000),
respectively, in relation to lease modification during the
year.
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BE-ZT—

==

32. AR5 ek
MREZEFEFREMBTAREZRZ RER

g

(a)

(b)

AEBTLTIHIEREBRALTZRS !

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

HEBARZRS (@) Transactions with related companies
—B-—fF —E-EHE
2021 2020
FHET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETFEEzHEEEX Rental expense for staff quarter (1,200) (1,200)
REMEZHEBA Rental income from investment properties 175 175
R E WA Service fee income 696 1,061
AR 7% & B = Service fee expense (15) (23)
BRI B Purchase of fashion accessories @) (4)
BB AR L 2BEESWA  HEEX Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,
RBEBRA - RBEFHZAREETIIZR] service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
HNEHERZZHRAERE - companies were at terms mutually agreed by the
parties concerned.
IREBAEME (b) Key management personnel remuneration
FTEEEASMS (RRMEFTI10MFEX Remuneration for key management personnel,
RFARARTESZ2HE (FEEMR representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive
HeHEEBEE2EYERN)) DT : directors excluding the benefits in kind regarding the
provision of a rental free quarter, as disclosed in note
10, is as follows:
—E--%& C—B-ZF
2021 2020
FTERT TER
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHEERF Short-term employee benefits 5,287 8,085
BBZESER Post-employment benefits 54 54
5,341 8,139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

33. MEEBMELREZHE 33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TREAAEERETHIEEBE ST The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
1B BRERERFREEH  BHETIHAEE from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
BEARERNFARRRERENAER 4R changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
EHRERERADPEARETH 2 RHEREZ liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
afE- will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

AL HERRE RTEER

Interest Lease Bank At
payable liabilities  borrowings Total

TRET TER THET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Bt&E21) (BtaE22)

(note 21) (note 22)
R=Z-n5NA—-H AtT April 2019 = 117,337 6,492 123,829
ik i Exchange adjustment _ 382 _ 382
ER T New lease entered - 36,363 - 36,363
BEALAEAY Early termination of lease
contracts - (9,483) - (9,483)
BT HERR Modification of lease terms = (7,342) = (7,342)
ERERMERA Finance cost recognised 728 4,096 - 4,824
RMERERE Financing cash flows (728) (52,693) 27,588 (25,833)
R-ZB-ZF¥NA—-A At 1 April 2020 - 88,660 34,080 122,740
HEBRE Exchange adjustment - 1,948 - 1,948
AAHHEE New lease entered - 49,930 = 49,930
REALHEESYN Early termination of lease
contracts - (10,652) - (10,652)

CHEEN- T3 Modification of lease terms = 15,112 = 15,112
20198 MR m S HAEEE Covid-19 related rent

HERR concessions - (19,677) - (19,677)
ERARE KA Finance cost recognised 1,149 3,689 - 4,838
MERLSHRE Financing cash flows (1,149) (47,623) 19,463 (29,309)
R-E-—% At 31 March 2021

=ZA=+-8H - 81,387 53,543 134,930
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34, ZATDETEMB AT 2B 34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY
R-ZE-_—F=A=+tHER=-Z-Z5=A Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
=t+—HB AEBZEENBLRZFHRHS 2021 and 31 March 2020 are set out below, the class of
RTX  REEFEBIN - FEE2RMERY shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated:
REBR -
BRTRAE
B /i
U Bhif
REERE Particulars of issued and AEEREERE
NAER Place of incorporation fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity ~ FEXH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group Principal activity
:s:_¢ —%Z%5 ﬁ
2021 2020
Moiselle (BVI) Limited AREARNS 2,000k 100% 100%  REER
British Virgin Islands EREAES Investment holding
2,000 shares of
US$1 each
EEGRAT B 500,008 B 3 100% 100% FERHRHREH
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
HRENBERAT & BREERZE 100% 100% HBRERNERA
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000 13 Sourcing of materials and
EER property holding

1,800,001 Rk 3
Deferred non-voting

200,000 shares
Ordinary

1,800,001 shares
REEERRAT B ) 100% 100%  REZR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
HEARERAT B 2R 100% 100% REER
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
AR ERAT B 1008 100% 100% REER
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment holding
BREARERAT B 300,008 & 100% 100% REZR
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Investment holding
LERARARAT B 1,000,000 B 100% 100%  REZR
iMaroon International Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Investment holding
BERRERAT B 10,0008 B 4 100% 100%  WEEA
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
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34, ARATNETEME DT 2215 (5F) 34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
BRIRAR
R /&R
AR Brwfs
REEHE Particulars of issued and REBELRE
NEER Place of incorporation fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity B
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group  Principal activity
—8C-F CBCEF
2021 2020
B (BR) ARAA Bk 1,000,000 3 100% 100% EBEBHRHRES
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
FRERERAT B 2 100% 100% REER
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. 3 g 500,0008 2 REE 100% 100% BEESRHRES
Singapore Bk Retail of fashion apparel and
500,000 shares of accessories
SC$1 each
ZEERAT AREARHE IREEIXT 100% 100% BERHRAREH
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
BERERRAT B 500,0008 B 3 100% 100% SEEERHRES
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
REEARERLT Bk 500,0008 B 100% 100% FERERHREH
Perfect National International Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
RK Moiselle Fashions Limited B 149K B0 70% 0% HEEHRGRES
Hong Kong 1,429 shares Wholesale of fashion apparel
and accessories
ERRAARAT Bk 1,008 48 100% 100%  H%HE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
BREREARAA &8 4R R 100% 100% REERK
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Investment holding
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

4. ARFEEMBR A 215 (&)

BRORARE
R/
A Bl Bhif
REEHE Particulars of issued and AREEERE
NAER Place of incorporation  fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity ~ EEEH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group  Principal activity
ZBI-F IZEIER
2021 2020
ERREERLT A A E£25,000 100% 100% BERHEBHRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau - SSb Retail of fashion apparel and
Registered capital accessories
MOP25,000
RPRERRAT B 1,000,008 3 100% 100% REER
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Investment holding
REBNMERAT B 500,000 & 100% 100% REER
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Investment holding
BREK (RY) BRAT hER 2,100,000 7 100% 100%  BERK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing Mainland China HK$2,100,000 Manufacturing of garments
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
AMIESBENEERAF" hER KE#500,0007 70% 0% FERBBEH
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion Wholesale  Mainland China RMB500,000 PR & B 6
Co., Ltd.* Retail and wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
A EXERTEERAT" hER AR#2,000,0007 100% 100% BERKEEH
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail Mainland China RMB2,000,000 IR B
Limited Company* Retail and wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
HERE (R BRAF- G 8,400,000 100% 100%  RERE
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$8,400,000 Manufacturing of garments

Co., Ltd.*

* REPEEMEMZABRERSE -

RMER - BRHNBARAERTEAREE

% o

* These are foreign investment enterprises registered under the
laws of the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of both years.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 4 #



35. XD A ZMBRREK

Ao A S 25 A Mk
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HE-T-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
= —E-FF
2021 2020
THERT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
RB AR ZRE Investments in a subsidiary 61,671 61,671
JE W Ffs 1B 2 B R IE Amount due from a subsidiary 218,114 222,024
279,785 283,695
RBEE Current assets
H{th FE W K Other receivables 228 142
RITHEBRRRE Bank balances and cash 385 58
613 200
nREBRE Current liability
H it FE K Other payables 917 888
mEEEEE Net current liabilities (304) (688)
EEFE NET ASSETS 279,481 283,007
BRK R CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Bz A< Share capital 2,880 2,880
HE Reserves 276,601 280,127
MRERE R AR TOTAL EQUITY 279,481 283,007
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HE-TZ

35.

KRRz BARRE (&)

—F=A=+—BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2021

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

AATREBEZEE ! Movement in the Company’s reserves:
BRR
I 13 ) 8 BRAE% RE = F R
Share Contributed Retained Total
premium surplus profits equity
TERT THERT TET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
(B =E()) (Bt =E (i)
(Note (i)) (Note (ii))
RZEBE—hE Balance at 1 April 2019
A — B z&ER 65,327 61,572 158,043 284,942
FREEE L85 Total comprehensive expense
for the year - = (4,815) (4,815)
MR=ZZE-FF=H=+—HK Balance at 31 March 2020 and
“EEFNA—Bz&s 1 April 2020 65,327 61,572 153,228 280,127
FAZEBE X B Total comprehensive expense
for the year = = (3,526) (3,526)
RZB=Z—F Balance at 31 March 2021
ZRA=t-Bz&& 65,327 61,572 149,702 276,601
B =E - Notes:
(i) REHREHESARE ROBERTIIRT (i) In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman

(if)

RRFZBRR ’FE%T%E"%’J’J‘)‘)KEQELEIH@
% ANRADARANRIMEEREREE
%%ZEEQJEEZ{;%? Hﬁﬁ};‘ﬁfﬂé‘-‘;ﬂ’f\ﬂui‘%ﬁ
BRAFRMD 27 RAEHDIK

ENBRIERRBER-_ZEE-_F—A=-+3 (ii)
BERZEBEAMBUBZHBLARERZ
EHMEEFEEAQAARMIELREZCE
TROCEEZEZE  BEHBRHBZARER

HiwEHEE e

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
then combined net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The application of
contributed surplus is the same as the share premium.
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it 31E
Address

=i

A

RIGEBE145%

BHE

1T DIE

Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road
North Point

Hong Kong

i)

itA
TR A 3955
FERES
10485-75R

Workshop Nos. 5-7, 10th Floor

Kodak House Il

39 Healthy Street East
North Point

Hong Kong

i
BB
R EE7R
BEHH
2612E1D
Part of 26th Floor
Hing Wai Centre
No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road
Aberdeen
Hong Kong

BB

i

KAR
BMNATS1-8755
SRIEKE
8IEARBE

Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,

Island Industrial Building,

Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street

Tai Kok Tsui
Kowloon
Hong Kong

SR (S SETE S

Properties held for Investment

RERAR
Existing use
JE

Shop

B
Warehouse
B
Warehouse
B
Warehouse
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Lease term

BHEE

Short lease

REE

Long lease

FHEE

Medium-term lease

FHEE

Medium-term lease
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Properties held for Investment

b3k REAR Gk
Address Existing use Lease term

(e) R EDRY

EHE

B R R

SR ES

A1H4101BER4102E it
(e) Units 4101B & 4102 on 41st Floor,

Excellence Times Plaza

Yitian Road and Fuhua Road

Futian District

Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

>
bt

FHEE

() HEIRINTRZEABIXE
REEREF1.6E3E3CRIDE /N hHIEE
(f) Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,
Tianfa Building, F1.6
Tian’an Chegongmiao
Industrial Zone,
Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

(g FERITRZEAFIEBARZASE

H2.8E5H5A5 » 5A6 ~ 5A7R5A8E ~ 616A5 * 6A6

6A7RO6ASE AR 7IE7A9 » 7A10 ~ 7A11 »

7A12 ~ 7TA13R7AT14E B hHEE
(g) Flats 5A5, 5A6, 5A7 and 5A8 on 5th Floor,

Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor

and Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and

7A14 on 7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2.8,

Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC Quarter Medium-term lease

) RERYIFELE
FBEREBAL_H FEEEHR)

16/B16HE = nNE hHEE
(h) Unit 16H on 16th Floor,
Qianhai Kerry Commercial Centre Phase 2 (Qianhai Kerry Centre),
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC Apartment Medium-term lease
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Group Financial Summary

UTAXREESE-Z-—F=ZA=+—HLEE The following is a summary of the published results and assets

FERFONBXEUREEREEZHE - and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31
March 2021.

£ RESULTS

BE=A=+t-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
—F--F ZToRF ZE-NF ZE-NF ZE-iF
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
TER FET FTERT TET THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

ik 2% Revenue 127,283 191,604 251,021 290,576 280,397
REER Loss from operations (29,078)  (119,134) (44,905) (21,622) (55,135)
wE B AR Finance costs (4,838) (4,824) (510) (189) (185)
BEEE AR 2% Share of results of a joint venture - - 131 577 (2,632)
HEMB QT 2 Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - - 356 - -

T REEMLUK  Net valuation gains (losses) on
RENEZGE land and buildings and

s (B518) F8 investment properties 14,319 (25,425) 27,790 27,594 10,052
BRBiAT (B51B)EF  (Loss) profit before taxation (19,597)  (149,383) (17,138) 6,360 (47,900)
FrE®R Income tax (3,608) 2,917 (2,703) (5,099) (4,578)
FR(ER)EF (Loss) profit for the year (23,205)  (146,466) (19,841) 1,261 (52,478)
THALER: Attributable to:

RRERERRR Equity shareholders of

the company (22,751)  (146,694) (19,717 2,007 (52,000)
FEREDR Non-controlling interests (454) 228 (124) (746) (478)
Fr (BB ERN (Loss) profit for the year (23,205)  (146,466) (19,841) 1,261 (52,478)

BR(B8R)BF (Loss) earnings per share

HAR Basic HK$(0.08)i& 7t HK$(0.51)8 T HKS$(0.07)Bt HK$0.0138 T HK$(0.18)i8 T

Annual Report 2021 44 #t Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #] 179



A% ] S 25 1k 2

Group Financial Summary

EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
MR=BA=+-—H
At 31 March
—E--F ZE-THF ZE-NE ZE-NF ZE—+tF
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

TER TER TER TER TER
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

W% MEKRME  Property, plant and equipment

DRREME and investment properties 677,136 631,325 685,169 645,818 554,472
HiEE Other assets 39,098 48,517 27,775 13,565 21,397
ELEFMEHEE Deferred tax assets 351 566 600 3,437 3,831
7B (BfE) EEFE Net current (liabilities) assets (57,042) (24,850) 75,509 103,524 104,742

BEEAERARBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 659,543 655,558 789,053 766,344 684,442

¥ RBEE Non-current liabilities (127,588)  (125,020)  (102,850) (94,254) (77,947)

531,955 530,538 686,203 672,090 606,495

R A< Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880

#E Reserves 530,049 528,178 684,071 669,834 603,493

FATERZRFRIEM Total equity attributable

BRRER to equity shareholder of
the company 532,929 531,058 686,951 672,714 606,373
FERER Non-controlling interests (974) (520) (748) (624) 122
B RES TOTAL EQUITY 531,955 530,538 686,203 672,090 606,495
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